TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, November 09, 2016
5:00 PM
Council Chambers

5:00PM CALL TO ORDER

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

ROLL CALL-PUBLIC SESSION WILL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE NON-PUBLIC
SESSION ABOVE |

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
2.a Fire Rescue Swearing-in Ceremony
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.a Public: 10/26/2016
TC Minutes 102616U.docx

3.b  Non-Public: 10/26/2016

AGENDA OVERVIEW

PUBLIC HEARINGS

5.a Public hearing for the Town Council to accept the donation of a $40,000.00 grant from the
Department of Justice, Division of Public Protection, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett
Police Department per RSA 31:95-b, Il (a).

110916 TC DONATIONS HPD.doc

AG DTF Staff Report.pdf

CONSENT AGENDA

6.a Accept the donation of a $5,050 grant from the U.S. Department of Justice; Bulletproof Vest
Partnership (BVP), to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department for the purchase
of up to 18 new bulletproof vests per RSA 31:95-b Il (b).
Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Bulletproof Vest Staff Report.pdf

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

9.a Appointment of Cutler L. Brown to final open SNHPC Rep. Position expiring 6/2017

staff report 11.9.2016 appointment cutler |. brown.pdf

1.09.2016 Nominatiosn & Appointments.pdf

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS
10.a Don Riley, Moderator - 11/8/16 Election

10.b  ICMA International Guests
- SHEILA SRI PRIYA, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia, Journalist for Star Publications

- SAKKARA SRIROENGLA, Bangkok, Thailand, Government of Thailand International Relations

Department

15 MINUTE RECESS

OLD BUSINESS
12.a 2017-18 Budget and Warrant Articles
12.b 2017 Town of Hooksett Health Insurance
NEW BUSINESS

13.a Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) update
Fillable Staff Report Template.pdf

Hooksett EOP 2013 revision-3.doc

13.b  Town Council Rules of Procedures - agenda order of business
Staff Report Agenda Order 110916.pdf

13.c Sewer TIF Presentation
Staff Report 9-30-1Staff Report 11-9-16 Sewer TIF Presentation.pdf

TIF 101916 meeting minutes at Library.pdf

101716_U.pdf

PowerPoint w revisions ADG Oct 26 2016 for town council presentation.pdf

14. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




185.

16.

17.

PUBLIC INPUT

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

16.a NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee
or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

16.b  NH RSA 91-A:3 1l (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itseif.

ADJOURNMENT

Public Input

1.

Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes.

No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
will determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be resolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting.

No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public Input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




[y
f-RN el < BE N e L I L

O R S N S - N NN SO UE R FC S FL SR UORY PO UL SN UTRN FCRR UORNUCRN S S WO S N S SR NS Y NG T NG T NG NG T N VO o W PR W g
COOND OO~ O U e W D) e DD 00 I N L R LI ke OO0 ] LA RN = OND S0 STION LA R LD DD e

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - UNOFFICIAL
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, October 26, 2016
6:00 PM
Council Chambers

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman James Sullivan called the Town Council meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
2. ROLL CALL#1

In aftendance: Councilors Donald Winterton, John Giotas, Timothy Tsantoulis, James
Levesque, Marc Miville, David Ross, and Chairman James Sullivan. Absent. Councilors
Adam Jennings [arrived at 6:02 p.m.] and Robert Duhaime [arrived at 6:40 p.m].

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

Al Jones and Kirsten Barber with NH Interlocal Trust (NHIT), Harvard Pilgrim Health, came
forward to address concerns regarding the 27% rate increase in health insurance. Mr. Jones
said the NH Interlocal Trust is owned and governed by members and by pooling all
purchasing power get a more competitive price over the long term. The program started in
July 2012, They are in their fifth year and have had some success. Mr. Jones said that
somewhere around 5,000 employees, a group is fully actuarially credible and the previous
year's claims are the source of projecting the next year's rate. He said there is a lot of
variability and the rating model that they use has been used for over 30 years. Mr. Jones
said that had Hooksett not been part of a pooled group, the rate would have soared to 48%.
The credible increase was almost 34% and with the special credit that brought the rate down
to 27.9%. Claims went up 107 percent. Part of the increase can be attributed to inflation and
cost of services and the drug trend is 20 percent of costs and continues to rise. He said one
community helps another and any claim over $100,000 is paid by premium insurance. The
Affordable Care Act (ACA) has had an impact in trends as well — 20 to 25 percent on average
across the country.

Councilor Ross said that when the town signed on with NHIT he understood the rate would
be based on multi-years, not based on claims of any one year. He asked what has changed.
Mr. Jones explained that an issue for Hooksett is that they only have seven months of claims.
A percentage is based on a town's experience and the whole pool. The average rate for the
whole pool is 4.6 percent. Councilor Ross said basing the increase on a seven month history
is not what “we were told”. He said we buy insurance so that unforeseen expenses are
covered and “at this rate, we could all self-insure”.

Chairman Sullivan asked if the Insurance Committee had discussion on what the company
believed would be the average over the contract term. Mr. Jones said there was no
discussion at all. Councilor Ross said he was led o believe that rates would be reasonably
contained and based on sampling of more than one year. Mr. Jones said there was talk
about the trust's overall experience year-by-year. Councilor Ross asked how much of this




51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
38
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

could be attributed to the Affordable Care Act (ACA) versus the way it used to be. Mr. Jones
said back in the late 1990s looking at frends of 14-17 percent. In the mid-2000s trends were
down to 6.5 to 7 percent. A big contribufor was drugs and the high cost drugs went off patent
constraining use of services.

Councilor Winterton said people are very concerned and noted that this information comes
past the middle of the budget season; the Budget Committee has met, union negotiations
have come to agreement and clearly these numbers will change those negotiations.
Unfortunately, he said, the Council doesn'’t get to decide; the voters do. Mr. Jones provided
national data regarding an aging workforce, providers, and rates. Councilor Winterton
pointed out that Anthem was the only provider in NH and asked Mr. Jones to limit his
responses to NH rather than bringing in national trends.

Councilor Winterton asked if the 370 claims over $50,000 are segmented into categories by
department of by organization. He said the town insures people that they are not legally
obligated to insure. He asked if there was any data available within the Highway Department.
Mr. Jones said “yes, we do”. Mr. Jones said that one plan is running very high and makes up
for a significant portion of the increase and “you may choose different plans going forward”.
Councilor Winterton asked if there were plans available that would allow participants to
choose where they go, provide choices and where “we can incentivize our participants to
make it cheaper. Mr. Jones said there are choices that can be made and plans that are less
costly. Councilor Winterton asked if that information was presented to the Insurance
Committee last year and asked what the rate increase is for other towns. Mr. Jones said they
presented plans that were comparable. Chairman Sullivan pointed out that a list of partner
increases was included in the Council packet. In response to Councitor Winterton, Mr. Jones
said that Hooksett's rate increase was the second highest and there were a couple of
communities with single digit increases. Councilor Winterton said the town has to send out
tax bills to all of the people and if other plans were available to save money and weren't
presented, he is very disappointed.

Kirsten Barber said that when they presented to the Insurance Committee they did include
low cost options and she believes they quoted ElevateHealth which wasn’'t requested of
them. She will go back and review what was presented but she does recall presenting
affordable options.

[Councilor Robert Duhaime arrived at 6:40]

Councilor Tsantoulis asked what options the town and employees have. He said a lot of
costs from insurance are for visits to the emergency room that may not be as necessary as it
seemed af the time. He asked if the insured might benefit from education and what options
are available. Mr. Jones said there are a lot of options with specific types of services and use
of emergency room that make it more attractive fo go to the doctors rather than the
emergency room. He said they are more than willing to sit with staff and go over ways of
reducing costs. Dr. Shankle asked if the town could be provided with an extension and have
a plan that meets everyone’s needs. Chairman Sullivan said the deadline is November 4 —
would a week’s extension be possible.

Kirsten Barber said they would allow an extension to November 30" but that would be tight
and she wouldn’t guarantee 1D cards would all get completed. If people are currently




100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148

enrolled, they can mass transfer everybody onto the new plan. More processing time will be
involved if people are changing plans.

Councilor Jennings indicated that insured received seven months of coverage and asked if
health care was seasonal and what types of claims “got us to 107”; what is driving it up. Mr.
Jones said emergency and inpatient hospital are the two biggest claims. Kirsten Barber said
before school starts there is an uptick in claims. Around the holidays people are generally
busy and don't like to schedule procedures but holiday season can see an uptick in mental
health.

Councilor Miville said he was deeply concerned about this matter and asked why other towns
have lower increases than Hooksett. Mr. Jones said that it depends on the group size,
credibility, and claims themselves. In response to Councilor Mivile who asked about
discounts provided for joining a wellness program, Mr. Jones said preventative care pays
upfront; savings come later.

Councilor Winterton and Mr. Jones talked about low co-pays encouraging usage, high
deductibles versus no deductibles, use of generic drugs that are not mandated, expensive
drugs and driving up the costs. Councilor Ross asked about participation in the weliness
program. Mr. Jones said they offer the wellness program as part of their premium and any
program tends to drive costs to some degree. Stop smoking doesn’'t change the outcome.
Kirsten Barber said $12,185 was paid fo employees.

Firefighter lan Tewksbury asked what percentage of towns are similar to Hooksett and is
Hooksett very unique. Kirsten Barber said the majority have HMO plans. Mr. Tewksbury
asked if usage this year was 90 instead of 107, what would the rate increase have been. Mr.
Jones said it would have reduced the increase by 15 percent but not likely zero, but it would
be a lot less.

Chairman Sullivan suggested that additional questions be forward to Dr. Shankle and Donna
Fitzpatrick. Dr. Shankle wanted to assure everyone that when staff heard about this, all are
very concerned and disappointed that NHIT did not provide the town with a “heads up”.
Chairman Sullivan thanked Mr. Jones and Ms. Kirsten for coming.

Chairman Sullivan adjusted the agenda to take up Item 12.a and 12.b - Stacey White
and Police Chief Bartlett.

Stacey White and her son, Cameron, came forward and thanked Councilor Ross and
Chairman Sullivan for responding to her email. Ms. White had a picture of her dog, Johnny,
who died a few months ago from an obstruction and described the medical treatment her dog
received, and did not receive, over a two week period from a local veterinary clinic. Ms.
White was in touch with Dr. Shankle and spoke with Donna Fitzpatrick who indicated that
Chief Bartlett would be in touch with her soon. She did hear from Chief Bartlett who recited
the relevant statute. Ms. White rejected his interpretation of the law and told him so. She
also filed a complaint with the Veterinary Board. Ms. White asked the Council to dedicate
resources to combat animal cruelty and make sure someone is thoroughly educated in
aspects of animal cruelty and prosecution. She said as a hiring authority, the town has an
opportunity to evaluate the town's public service and not expose the town legally.




149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
131
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
168

Chief Bartlett came forward and said it was very “disturbing to hear these comments”. He
said Ms. White sent him an email about Johnny's journey. He researched the matter and
found that “[my] hands are tied”. He was in touch with Dick Tracy of the NH Department of
Justice who agreed with his assessment of the situation. He takes exception to allegations
made by Ms. White. He also sought the advice of Town Counsel, Matt Serge. This is not a
criminal matter based on statutory language. He said he is a dog person and sent Ms. White
a heartfelt email indicating that there was nothing the Police Department could do based on
the law. He advised her to get in touch with the Veterinary Board; yet, she never told him that
she had filed a complaint. The Veterinary Board is conducting an investigation into the
matter.

Councilor Tsantoulis expressed all due respect to the family who lost their pet but said he
didn’t believe there was anything the Council could discuss further. Chairman Sullivan said
the Council can allow citizens to come before the Council.

David Ross feels it was appropriate; the gist of Ms. White’s complaint is the responsiveness
as opposed to what was done, and it should be discussed at a non-public session. He
understands it is not an arrest-ible offense but with the animal control position empty, who do
residents call. Councilor Ross felt the matter deserves discussion; that is what we do as
public servants. He said he didn't believe it was brought to the Council for punishment but
rather a genuine concern on Ms. White’s part that there is something wrong.

Chairman Sullivan said the Council can look into what can be done about the animal control
officer and thanked Ms. White and her son for coming in.

The Veterinarian asked to comment. Councilor Winterton didn’t feel that was appropriate.
Chairman Sullivan asked the speaker to hold her comments until the public comment period.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councifor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the October 12,
2016 public meeting minutes, as amended. Motion passed, 7-0-2 [Councifors Ross and
Duhaime abstained].

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to approve the October 12, 2016
non-public meeting minutes, as presented. Motion passed, 7-0-2 [Councifors Ross and
Duhaime abstained].

6. AGENDA OVERVIEW

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

8. CONSENT AGENDA

9. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

Town Administrator, Dr. Shankle, asked the Council to increase the legal budgef line.
Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to increase the legal budget line
by $814.63 for a total of $18,666.58. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.




199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
243

Dr. Shankle indicated that the mortgagor of the 18 Benton Road property has agreed to a
$10,000 price to close the matter; that is, $8,000 expended by the town for demolition and
clean-up plus legal fees. Councilor Winterfon moved, second by Marc Miville, to accept the
$10,000 offer to close out the 18 Benton Road matter and release the lien on the property.
Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Dr. Shankle announced that the Town Clerk’'s and Tax Collector’s offices will be closed on
election day since staff in those offices will be working at the polls.

The Hooksett American Legion will honor the Gold Star mothers of Hooksett on Veterans
Day, November 11%, at 12:00 noon.

As requested by the Council, Dr. Shankle sent a letter to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct
asking that they limit water usage and advise their customers to do so, as alf other Hooksett
residents were asked to do. There was a newspaper article indicating they have asked their
customers to limit water usage.

Dr. Shankle said they had not yet gotten the tax rate out; will probably do so before the next
Council meeting. A draft newsletter was provided for Council review. Chairman Sullivan
asked that Councilors with comments about the newsletter provide them to Dr. Shankle or
Nick Germain.

10. PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

Dr. Winnie Krogman came forward and said the tone has been that malpractice has
happened and how can this be assumed in this situation. She said a number of comments
were not factual, are inappropriate, and blatantly incorrect. It is up to the Veterinarian Board
to decide this matter. She apologized for taking the Council’s time but needed to come forth
for her staff and herself who care about pets and families.

Hooksett Firefighter lan Tewksbury who lives in Hopkinton said he speaks for a lot of
employees who feel lucky to be working for Hooksett even with a 27 percent increase in
health insurance. He asked that the Council not make any drastic changes of what they give
to employees but approach the matter from a different point-of-view and this rate increase
provides a great opportunity for the Council and employees to be on the same side and not
pass on the full increase to the employees.

Scoft Evans, 69 Main Street, said he thought the proposal on the “no left turns onto Main
Street’ was supposed to be addressed tonight but is not on the agenda. Chairman Sullivan
said a public hearing hasn’t been posted yet. Councilor Miville offered to call Mr. Evans once
the hearing is scheduled. Donna Fitzpatrick said it will be held on either November gth {6t
or December 14,

11. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

Councilor Winterton nominated Cutler L. Brown as a representative to the Southern NH
Planning Commission with a term to expire in 2017. Councilor Winterton said the Planning
Board selected Mr. Brown over one other candidate who was equally capable and should be
encouraged to become involved. Chairman Sullivan asked how many serve on the
Commission and thought it was three. Councilor Winterton said Mr. Marshall and Mr. Brown




249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298

serve. Dr. Shankle will double-check how many representatives should be on the
Commission.

12. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS — taken up earlier in the meeting

13. 15 MINUTE RECESS

14. OLD BUSINESS
14.a 2017-18 Budget and Warrant Articles

Councilor Miville said that the library came back to the Budget Committee for $10,000 for one
of their employees not involved in pay equity. The Budget Committee approved the request
which added $6,024 to the library budget.

Finance Director, Christine Soucie, went over the Budget and Warrant Articles with Estimated
Impact on the Tax Rate. She had no information on the police union. Director Soucie
passed out updated figures to include the new health insurance rates, and indicated that
equitable raises include part-time and DPW staff that are not covered under union contract.
Director Soucie said $2711,000 is in the current budget which can be found in the health
insurance line since there were vacant positions that could allow moving money around
some. Councilor Winterton said “we need to be cognizant that a year from now there will be
$200,000 less that we might have put towards something else”. Christine Soucie said for
FY17-18 the $211,000 is just the town, not the library and sewer; the next budget includes
the increase to $390,000. She said the rates for July through December is already factored
in at six percent, then add 20% to the six percent equals $390,000.

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to see if the town will vote to
raise and appropriate the sum of $390,000 for salaries and benefits for non-union full-time
and part-time town personnel. Rolf Call #2. Councilor Duhaime-yes, Councilor Miville-yes,
Councilor Ross-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councifor Jennings-yes, Councilor Giotas-yes,
Councilor Winterton-yes, Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Chairman Sullivan-yes. Motion passed
unanimously, 9-0.

Councilor Winterton asked if the heaith insurance rate increase affects the tax rate. Director
Soucie said not for the 2016 tax rate. In 2017, because the $211,000 savings will be used,
that will not go into the fund balance and that's when it would hit the tax rate. Director Soucie
said it will add an estimated .30 cents to the tax rate next year. The Council discussed
increases in the insurance rate over the years. Chairman Sullivan remarked that perhaps the
town should change the insurance coverage to go from July to July so there is no need to
worry about unexpected increases.

The Council discussed the pros and cons of weekly payroll versus bi-weekly payroll.
Currently staff is paid weekly and, according to Director Soucie, the process can be changed
with permission from the state. Chairman Sullivan asked if there would be any savings.
Director Soucie said there would be small savings in the cost of paper and processing. She
will take a closer look and direct deposit cannot be mandated. Donna Fitzpatrick said that
perhaps efficiencies could be realized by centralizing three payroll systems — town, library,
and sewer. Councilor Winterton asked if that would save time. Director Soucie said that the
library uses a vendor and taking that on would be like taking on a mini company. it would not




299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347

be as easy as the sewer because they are our employees. It would take no time at all to
incorporate the sewer employees. Dr. Shankle suggested that the Sewer Commission
representative should talk with them about it. Councilor Winterton wili bring it to the
Commission members. Councilors mentioned that even with a pay raise, employees who live
in town will lose money because of the increase in the health insurance rate

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to keep the town share of 15% in
place for the next year. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0

Councilor Winterton said he values part-time employees since they save the town a lot of
money and the Council should not lowball those employees. He said Social Security
increases went up .5 percent and Medicare insurance went up 120 percent. Councilor
Winterton moved to raise and appropriate $142,819, a three percent wage increase.
Councilor Ross seconded and said it was hard to hire people right now and it was important
to take care of employees and the three percent is consistent with what “we have done in the
past”.

Councilor Miville said that he cringes when people tell him to pay employees more to keep
them here. People make life decisions, and it is there decision to make. He will support the
increase however. Councilor Ross said in exit interviews lower pay was a recurring theme.
Dr. Shankle suggested not focusing on that end of it. He said “there is a reason that we can't
fill positions that we have”. DPW Director Diane Boyce can't get a mechanic because the
town is paying less than everybody else, and she can’t get truck drivers because we're
paying too low. There is a hierarchy of needs and they do need to put food on their table and
be able to afford a car and get to work so it is a distraction to them if those needs are not
possible to be filled. Dr. Shankle said some who work the hardest are going to be taking
home less money even with this three percent.

Chairman Sullivan said there is need for balance and this is not out of line with past practices,
and "we also need to consider employees who live in town” who will have to pay increased
insurance rates and pay more taxes. Councilor Winterton suggested a separate bucket that
could be spent as the Town Administrator sees fit. Councilors Winterton and Ross withdrew
their previously made motions.

Councilor Winterfon moved, second by Councifor Ross, to authorize a two percent increase
to non union personnel amounting to $95,213 and provide the Town Administrator with a one
percent equity pool of $47,606. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0. This will be placed on the
ballot.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councifor Tsantoulis, to allocate a two percent increase to
non union personnel and a one percent equity pool for a fotal amount of $142,819. Motion
passed unanimously, 9-0. Information should be placed in the Voters Guide.

The Council discussed the starting salary for a Recreation Director
Councilor Ross moved, second by Councifor Jennings, to raise and appropriate the sum of

$78,269 for the salary and benefits to hire a full time Recreation Director. Motion passed 6-3
[Councifors Miville, Levesque, and Sullivan opposed].

10




348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Gouncifor Miville, to discontinue the Feasibility Study.
Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Finance Director Soucie said there will be 15 warrant articles on the ballot. She will wait to
close; closing now would provide $63,000 more.

15. NEW BUSINESS
15.a Obligation of Impact Fees Zone 1 to Lilac Bridge

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Ross, to obligate $33,372.68 in impact fees
from Zone 1 to the Lilac Bridge project. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0. 1t was mentioned
that $278,000 has already been obligated for the Lilac Bridge. This would add $33,372.68.

15.b Obligation of Impact Fees for Zone 3

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Jennings, fo obligate $86,814 in impact fees
from Zone 3 to the Morrill Road extended drainage and guard rails due fo increased
development. Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Winterton to extend the meeting until finished.
Motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

15.c Tax Rate and Fund Balance

Finance Director, Christine Soucie, said the current policy is to maintain a minimum
unassigned fund balance of 5% and the largest balance shall be 8% of the general fund’s
annual budget, including the School and County’s net appropriations. The total tax rate is
estimated to increase by $2.16 from the 2015 rate of $24.72 to $26.88, if no fund balance is
applied. As of June 30, 2016, the town has $4,941,289 of unassigned fund balance which is
estimated to be 10%. She said a low unassigned fund balance can be viewed as an indicator
of financial instability which can negatively affect bond ratings and interest rate options, and a
high unassigned fund balance is beneficial to the town’s cash flow. Director Soucie provided
three options that were discussed by the Council.

Option A: apply excess fund balance over 8%, the total tax rate increase is $1.54

Option B: apply excess fund balance to keep the town’s share of the tax rate level; the total
tax rate will increase $1.14

Option C: apply excess fund balance over 5%; the total tax rate increase is .62 cents

Director Soucie recommends Option A that would allow for enough funds to withdraw the
estimated $1.3 million for the Lilac Bridge and still leave the town with $2.6 million in
unassigned fund balance, which is just above the 5% minimum. Chairman Suilivan moved to
approve Option C. There was no second.

Councilor Winterton said he is in favor of Option A since it is important to keep the fund
balance high because it impacts the credit rating, is transparent and the right thing to do and

11




397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432

433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447

it let's the citizens understand that the cost of running the town is going up. Various figures
were bandied about

Councilor Ross felt it might be wise to retain “what we have” since construction on the Lilac
Bridge proposes to take $1.3 million to come from the unassigned fund balance. The fund
balance can be used next year if it's still there. Councilor Winterton noted that "we’re building
a bridge out of one-time money; the bridge is for the next 30-50 years”. He asked why the
town wouldn’t bond the money instead of taking from taxpayers all in one year — a bridge is a
long term thing. Dr. Shankle reminded everyone that the bridge is an emergency which is
why the fund balance can be used.

A roli call on Option A was called. Rolf Call #5: Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Councifor Ross-no,
Councilor Duhaime-no, Councilor Jennings-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councilor
Winterton-yes, Councilor Miville-no, Councilor Giotas-no, Chairman Sullivan-no. Motion
failed 4-5.

Chairman Sullivan moved to approve Option B. Motion failed since there was no second.

Chairman Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Tsantoulis, to authorize the Town
Administrator to apply fund balance in excess of 9% to the tax rate. Roll Call #6: Councilor
Miville-no, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councifor Winterfon-yes, Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor
Ross-yes, Councilor Tsantoufis-yes, Councilor Jennings-yes, Councilor Duhaime-yes,
Chairman Sullivan-yes. Motion passed 8-1{Councilor Miville opposed].

16, SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS
17. PUBLIC INPUT
18. NON-PUBLIC SESSION

18.a NH RSA 91-A:3 1l (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee
or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

18.b  NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

J. Sullivan motioned to enter non-public session at 10:01pm. Seconded by T.
Tsantoulis.

Roll Call

D. Ross —~yes

D. Winterton — yes
J. Levesque - yes
R. Duhaime - yes
A. Jennings - yes
M. Miville — yes

T. Tsantoulis — yes
J. Giotas — yes

J. Sullivan - yes
Vote unanimously in favor.

12




443
449

450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470

T. Tsantoulis motioned to exit non-public at 10:15pm. Seconded by R. Duhaime.
Vote unanimously in favor.

R. Duhaime motioned to seal the non-public minutes of 10/26/16, Seconded by J.
Levesque. Vote unanimously in favor.

19. ADJOURNMENT

A.Jennings motioned to adjourn the 10/26/16 public session at 10:15pm. Seconded by
T. Tsantoulis. Vote Unanimously in favor.

NOTE: The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file material, and/or ancillary documents that
the Town Council Chair has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior
approval of the documents.

Respectfully submitted,

Suzanne Beauchesne
Recording Clerk

13




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Hooksett Town Council will be holding a public hearing on Wednesday,
November 9, 2016 @ 6:00pm at the Hooksett Town Hall Chambers, 35 Main Street,
Hooksett, NH. The purpose of the public hearing is to accept the donation of a
$40,000.00 grant from the Department of Justice, Division of Public Protection, to the
Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department per RSA 31:95-b, 1T (a).
Questions should be directed to the Hooksett Police Department at 603-624-1 560.

14




Staff Report

Title: Acceptance of Donations

November 9th, 2018
Date:

Background and Discussion of Issues

The Hooksett Police Department has experienced additional calls for service regarding
criminal activity around the sale, possession with intent to seli, and possession of Controlled
Drugs. The town of Hooksett has not been immune to the devastating effects that the Heroin
crisis has on the State of NH. Hooksett Police responded fo fourteen drug overdose cails
with five that resulted in revival, four uses of NARCAN and five overdose related deaths in
2016. Our community continues to deal with burglaries, car break-ins, robberies and thefts
that have a direct connection to the purchase and sale of narcotic drugs. The Town will
continue to pay the officers Salary and Benefits who is currently assigned to the NH Attorney
General's Drug Task Force. In return will receive a $40,000.00 grant plus any overtime
reimbursement. This grant money, including any overtime reimbursement, should be placed
back in the Police Department's budget for fiscal year 2016-2017 in both the salary and
overtime lines. The previous $40,000.00 grant was for the fiscal year of 2016 and expired on
Junie 30th, 2018 which is the reason for the most recent $40,000.00 grant that had been
received by the Town. The recent $40,000.00 grant received is for the fiscal year of 2017
which would cover from July 1st, 2016 through June 30th, 2017.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to accept the donation of $40,000.00 from the Department of Justice, Division of Public
Protection, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department for a public hearing at
the Town Council meeting for the acceptance of this grant under RSA 31:95-b, Ill (a) and to
return that amount to the police department’'s 2016-2017 fiscal budget salary and overtime
lines.

Fiscal Impact

The donation is a grant to the Hooksett Police Department for a total amount of
$40,000.00, no fiscal impact.

Lieutenant James Bradley

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




Staff Report

Title: Acceptance of Donations

November gth, 2016
Date:

Background and Discussion of Issues

The Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP), created by the Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant Act
of 1998 is a unique U.S. Department of Justice initiative designed to provide a critical resource
to state and local law enforcement. BVP is a critical resource for state and local jurisdictions
that saves lives. Based on data collected and recorded by BJA staff, in FY 2012, protective
vests were directly attributable to saving the lives of at least 33 law enforcement and
corrections officers, in 20 different states, an increase of 13.7% over FY 2011. At least 14 of
those life-saving vests had been purchased, in part, with BVP funds. The Hookseit Police
Department has been awarded $5,050.00 in grant money from the Bulletproof Vest Partnership
for the purchase of up to 18 new bulletproof vests. This grant covers 50% of the cost for each
vest purchased. The deadline to request payments from the recently anncunced FY 2016
award funds is August 31st, 2018. The Hooksett Police Department recently purchased two
bulietproof vests from the most recent officers that were hired and purchased two replacements
for current officers that had expired vests. This grant money should be placed back into the
Police Department's budget for FY 2016-2017 in the uniform line, which would cover 50% of
the cost for each of the four recently purchased bulletproof vests.

Recommendation {including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Motion to accept the donation of $5,050.00 from the U.S. Department of Justice; Bulletproof
Vest Partnership, to the Town of Hooksett for the Hooksett Police Department for the
acceptance of this grant in public session at the Town Councit meeting under RSA 31:95-b, il
(b) and to return that amount to the police departrent’'s 2016-2017 fiscal budget uniform line.

Fiscal Impact

The donation is a grant to the Hooksett Police Department for a total amount of
$5,050.00, no fiscal impact.

Prepared by: Lieutenant James Bradley

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur

&




Staff Report

Title: APpointment

Date: 117912016

Background and Discussion of Issues

SNHPC Rep for Planning Board: Cutler L. Brown was nominated to fill the
currently final vacant SNHPC Rep. position on 10/26/2016 by town council.
Mike Jolin had previously occupied the spot Mr. Brown will fill. It will expire
6-2017.

Recommendation {including suggested motion, if appropriate}

Appoint Cutler L. Brown to vacated SNHPC Rep. position expiring on 6-2017.

Fiscal Impact

None

Nicholas P. Germain, Project Coordinator

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur

11




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
AVAILABLE APPOINTED POSITIONS

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Resident Members
(2) Hooksett Business Members

HERITAGE COMMISSION

(2) Full Members, exp. 6/2019

(1) Full Member, exp. 6/2018

(1) Alternate Member, exp. 6/2017
(1) Alternate Member, exp. 6/2018

RECYCLING & TRANSFER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
(1) Alternate Member, exp. 6/2018

TOWN HALL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE
(5) Full Members

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD
(1) Full Member, exp. 6/2019

(1) Full Member, exp. 6/2017

(1) Alternate Member, exp. 6/2019

TOWN HALL PRESERVATION COMMITTEE
(4) Full Members

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
(1) Alternate Member, exp. 6/2019

These are unpaid volunteer positions. If interested in being nominated for an appointed
position, please fill out the volunteer application form and send it to:
Town of Hooksett, Administration Department, 35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106.

Administration/Nominations&A ppointments/Beards Committees Open November 2016

18



Nominations

None

Appointments

Southern New Hampshire Planning Commission

Cutler L. Brown — Voting member — exp. 6-2016

19




Town of Hooksett

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTED TOWN BOARD POSITION

Date Submitted: :}*1);3 [y 206 N
Name: CorLpe B}j\@mn] Phone: g‘:@?/f - 7P D33
Address: _ /5w H FTE AL TERRACE

Email Address: ¢ v -+/ee/, BR 0w N @ < 1 ans’fﬁf N Q‘]L

i S
Signature: le) jﬁ@&’/\ Ul_pa /%/ww—m»

B R e o e P L bt bt b b e o B bbb e

Return completed form to: Town of Hooksett, 35 Main Street, Hooksetft NH 03108,

Attn: Administration Department or email to kambrose@hooksett.org.

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

{ am willing to serve on the following Town Boards/Commiffees/Commissions. | understand if
appointed, | am required to attend the regular meetings.

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES

- Conservation Commission
____ Economic Development Study Committee
__ Heritage Commission

____ Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
Planning Board

Recycling & Transfer Advisory Committee
Town Hall Preservation Committee
Zoning Board of Adjustment

- 7 | _
_\_/_,Other (Please specify.) So,;, OB, PN E Covrer, R E

0c




How long have you been a resident of Hooksett?

HH YRS

Why are you seeking this position?

S NOWLEING 2 e :
Ciluin 6 BRI 7o THE Comna Uy | T;L
Do you have any specific goals or objectives?

—

Bz reElpEo

Please list special skills, talents or experience pertinent to the position sought:

My o (PLANE — 2 yRY,
Sa, NP PE oM, J L VMR C

e omoan — 5 RS — TRe T e & TS CAC_
oG,

Please list any potential conflicts of interest you may have if appointed for a board or commission:

N o3

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or educational experience you would like to have considered:
Cnrsp TEP

LipERTy HSE BD. PEmBER Clanrs)
RGPy CRAaypme~D) —~ YR, VoLuw TE=R_
74 e o0 K9 1 VD UST, Comm, g

Please list any current/prior Town board membership and the dates of service:

Ny, = o RICHANART
PLNE BOAKRD - EAR L Ro'S PAPIRS BALL

Cttm i

Le




Staff Report

Title: Emergency Operations Plan Update

Date: November, 2016

Background and Discussion of Issues

Update:

#2 Change Alternate EOC from School to Fire Station 1, 1 Riverside Ave.

#1Emergency Management Director from Mike Williams to James Burkush.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Adopt 2016 Emergency Operations Plan with updates

Fiscal Impact

none

Chief Burkush

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation




TOWN OF HOOKSETT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS
PLAN

Compiled By:
LMK Emergency Planning Associates
32 Ridgewood Drive
Bow, NH

Revised November 2016

23




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ADMINISTRATIVE DOCUMENTS

Record of Revisions and Changes ...t v
FOIWATH oo eeeeveeeseeseeeeeeeeieeeeeeeetisss s sb e asbe s e s avms e et bemsrenraann s e haSbed£h R e oA s L e b T e R bE e E R T s RR e s b bR S L b e SRS n e e b E b e e P n b vi
Promulgation TIOCUMENL .....viiiriiiiiciri it et vii
Annual Concurtence TOWN COUNCILL .. iivcriirrrr ittt st s s viii
Signatories to the Hooksett Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) ..o ix
D TeIra1 oy 1oy s 1R % 1 ST TUT RO OO OO O EOPOUR U TP PRI X
BASIC PLAN

1 Introduction

Al PUTPOSE ©evvevarreniiverarmetese sttt et ssaet s s as e dss b ah et s d S s s 1
B. SCOPE ttrvstarecreseurerems it bbbt e bR b e 1
C. SEIUCEUTE ©vvvevverertreresrsesersnstisssaeriasssransseensreesseeserststasstisssansmisassnnsarstissinnndnssitassttasassnes 2
D. ESF DESCITPLOMNS 1viivevririnaieiieiiiiisiii ittt b bbb 4

II.  Situation and Planning Assumptions

A. STEUATION 1retiireetersieeetiitaesesbeeraesrersasseabassresessaessasshbssntsne ek b s s s e s e rbesasnan e s e e eraaanessnsbibins 6
B. Planning ASSUMPLIONS ...cceriveieiiieiiiesieie st 7
C. Hazard Analysis and ASSESSIENT ..o 8

III, Concept of Operations

A. L€ 1S 115721 T OO SO SO OUO I OOU PP CURUPTOYUOPPIISTIS PPN 9
B. Hooksett EOP Implementation ...t 10
C. Phases of Emergency Management ... .o 10
D. Organizations and Assignments of Responsibilities. ..o 12
E. Roles and Responsibilities ... e 17
F. Administration and LOZISTICS ...corerereiinsineer e 19
G. Alert and NOUTICALIONS .ovviveeriiiieeerir et s s 21

24




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

H. Activation and Deployment ... 23
1. Local-to-Local, -State, -Federal, and -International Interface ..o 24
J. Continuity Of OPErations ....coiviveireiiirieisrse e e 25
K. Continuity oFf GOVEINITENT ....cccoviriririrriiesesisrie e s e 26
L. Recovery and DEactiVation ... s 26

IV. Plan Management

A. DEVEIOPIMENT 11t bass sttt e bbb bbb 27
B. IVIBENTENAIICE vevvirveeietireiisisersreriseestsressassass e beseesesnsesnssisebsebaasearen e st ra s e s e ar e et st b ta s 27
C. DICTICIENCIES vevveirereesrirsiitiesnenerteseebesbesssreesssrssresssneor bads b s b b e e b e s san e s ae e sb s saan b st bt natn 31
D. DocUmMENRE CONIOL.ooviivieiiiieriereci it e s s e e s s 31 |
E. Training and EXEICISES. ..o ettt s 31 I

V.  Authorities and References

A. Statutes and REGUIALIONS .o.o.vvriceiiriiiieiiiss et 32
B. RETEICIICES wvvvvovvieiiieviiressieesesiaesersrrseessesbssiastaassbas bt anasarmsraros ess s ebs e bt e s e at s s b s tsan s 32
C. Authority of Hooksett Emergency Response AZENncies ......ocweernnsinnisias 33

EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS (ESF)

1. TrANSPOITATION Levvere ettt st s b 1-1
2. Communications and ALSIHING c...veiever e vvrevnererieneeris s 271
3. Public Works and Engineering ..ot i 3-1
4, FATe FIBHEIE. o vovereereere e et ot e b et b b s 4-1
5. Information and PIANNINE. .....coivveeviiiiinnmiiis s 5-1
6. Mass Care and ShEeller .....oceovviiecrvniicciiin i s 6-1
7. RESOULCE SUPPOIT .cviveiruerinriieaes s ittt ssm e e bbb 7-1

25



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

8. Health and Medical Services ...,
9. Search and RESCUE ......ccoiirinicicen s
10.  Hazardous Materials ..o
11, Food and Water......cocveeveneniinicmiie e issescneeiis
12, ENEIZY covoveeriiiirie vttt it e ettt
13.  Law Enforcement and SECUTITY ...cccocvvinriimnes e e
14.  Public Information .........oeiiiiiisinens s
15. Volunteers and Donations....ccceviirieerinnissiiein.
16.  Animal Health. ..o

HAZARD - SPECIFIC ANNEXES

Hazardous Materials
Terrorism
Dams

ADMINISTRATIVE APPENDICES

A. List of Acronyms/Abbreviations

Terms and Definitions

C. Emergency Authorities and Directives

D. Hazard Analysis and Assessment

E. HEOQOC Essential Positions and Task
LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 — Components of the State EOP ...

Figure 2 — Emergency Operations Center Organization. .. ..........oooovviiiiinnn.

i

........................

........................

........................

........................

........................ 11-1

12

26




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Figure 3 — Command and Control SECHON...... ..ot v
Figure 4 — Operations SECHION .....ccimiiiiimisinrsssei et s s e
Figure 5 — Information & Planning Section .......een i,
Figure 6 — LOgIStics SECtION .....vviiveiiriiii i
Figure 7 — Administration & Finance Section..............coooiiinn

Figure 8 — Emergency Support Function Matrix..............oooin.

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — General Message Form

Attachment 2 — Request for Resources or Assistance
Attachment 3 — Incident Action Plan Form

Attachment 4 — EOC Request/Task Assignment Form
Attachment 5 — Resource Status & Dispatch Request Form
Attachment 6 — State Assistance Request Form
Attachment 7— Event Log

Attachment 8- Radio Log

Attachment 9— Damage Assessment Form

Attachment 10— Local State of Emergency (Sample)

Attachment 11 — Town Resources

A3

14

16

17

27




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

RECORD OF REVISIONS AND CHANGES

1. Draft #1 May, 1995

2. Draft #2 March, 2004

3. Draft #3 June/July 2004
4. Draft #4 April 2010

5. Draft# 5 October 2013
6. Draft #6 November 2016




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

FOREWORD

The Town of Hooksett’s Emergency Operations Plan (HEOP) establishes a framework for
Hooksett to provide assistance in an expeditious manner to save lives and to protect property in
the event of a disaster. The Hooksett Office of Emergency Management (HOEM) appreciates
the continuing cooperation and support from all departments and agencies and to the volunteer
and private organizations, which have contributed to the development and publication of this
plan. Hooksett has worked with these groups to provide a forum for the departments and
agencies with identified responsibilities in the plan to participate in planning and exercise
activities in order to develop, maintain and enhance Hooksett’s response capability.

The purpose of the HEOP is to facilitate the delivery of all types of response assistance to
jurisdictions and to help them deal with the consequences of significant disasters. The plan
outlines the planning assumptions, policies, concept of operations, organizational structures and
specific assignments of responsibility to the towns departments and agencies involved in
coordinating the local response activities.

James Burkush , Fire Chiet/EM Director
Hooksett Emergency Management

vi

29




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

PROMULGATION

This Plan is adopted and or revised as the Town of Hooksett’s Emergency Operations Plan (HEOP). It
will provide the basis for coordinating protective actions prior to, during and after any type of disaster.
The plan was prepared under the guidelines established by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
and the State Office of Emergency Management and Homeland Security. This plan becomes effective
upon signature of the Town Council and supersedes all previous Town of Hooksett Emergency
Management Plan’s

Promulgation, as it relates to the Hooksett Emergency Operation Plan (HEOP), is the act of the
jurisdiction officially proclaiming, declaring and/or adopting, via local ordinance, Exccutive Order (EO),
or etc., the HEOP as the emergency operations plan for the Town. The promulgation document should
include the signature of the jurisdiction’s chief executive.

The promulgation document gives the HEOP official status and provides both authority and
responsibility for organizations to perform their tasks. However, it can be a Resolution or Executive
Order adopting the HEOP as the operations plan for the jurisdiction.

The Plan will be supplemented by Standard Operating Guidelines (SOGs) detailing the steps necessary
to accomplish assigned responsibilities. Individuals, department heads and organizations will prepare
SOG’s, which will be maintained by the responsible organization, with the assistance of the Emergency
Management Director.

All individuals, departments, and organizations with responsibilities outlined in this plan shall read and
understand their responsibilities as outlined and they shall commit to training, exercises and plan
maintenance efforts needed to support this EOP.

Adopted This Day of , 2016

Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire
Town Council

Signature:
Typed Name:

Council Chairman

Signature:
Typed Name:

Council Vice Chairman

Signature:
Typed Name:

Town Administrator

vii

30




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN
ANNUAL CONCURRENCE

This plan has been reviewed and approved by the Emergency Management Organization. T, his shall be
conducted annually before the town meeting. Following the town meeting, the new Town Councilors
shall execute their concurrent approval at an organizational meeting,.

Name of Community: Town of Hooksett, NH

Reviewed and approved: Date:

Signature:

Typed Name:

Chairman, Town Council

Signature:

Typed Name:
Town Administrator

Signature:

Typed Name:
Emergency Management Director

viii

31




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

SIGNATORIES TO THE TOWN OF HOOKSETT EMERENCY OPERATIONS
PLAN

Explanation: Signatories to the Town of Hooksett EOP are affirming that this plan should be updated on

an annual basis. Every agency with a primary role in an Emergency Support Function (ESF) should sign
this section.

Chairman, Town Council

Town Administrator

E.M. Director

Asst E.M, Director

Code Officer

Police Chief

Fire Chief

Highway Manager

SAU Supt

Finance Director

Council Chair

PO

32




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

DISTRIBUTION LIST

The following individuals and organizations have received a copy of this Emergency Operations
Plan. It is the responsibility of the tasked individuals and organizations to read and understand their
responsibilities as outlined. This distribution list will serve as a checklist for distributing later revisions
to this plan.

Town_of Hooksett Officials Plan Number

Chairman, Town Council Electronic Copy

Town Administrator Electronic Copy

Public Works Director Electronic Copy
Police Chief Electronic Copy
Health Officer Electronic Copy

Code and Building Inspector Electronic Copy

Fire/Rescue Chief Electronic Copy

EM Director Electronic/Hard Master Copy

Planning Board Electronic Copy

Town Clerk Electronic Copy

Superintendent SAU 15 Electronic Copy

State of New Hampshire

Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Electronic/Hard Copy

33



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

L

INTRODUCTION

A.

PURPOSE

Hooksett’s Emergency Operations Plan (HEOP) predetermines, to the extent possible,
actions to be taken by emergency organizations of the town and cooperating private
institutions to prevent disasters if possible; to reduce the vulnerability of town
residents to any disasters that cannot be prevented; to establish capabilities for
protecting citizens from the effects of disasters; to respond effectively to the actual
occurrence of disasters; and to provide for recovery in the aftermath of any emergency
involving extensive damage or other debilitating influence on the normal pattern of
life within the community.

The EOP consists of three fundamental components: the basic plan, the emergency
support functions (ESF’s), and hazard specific annexes. These components are
briefly defined as follows:

The Basic Plan provides general background information pertinent to Hooksett, its
location, potential hazards, emergency response organization and responsibilities,
interface with surrounding communities and with State and Federal government and
authorities to operate in a disaster.

ESF’s provide a description of the functions necessary for a coordinated response to
an emergency situation by the community's resource agencies. Each support function
focuses on a ctitical emergency function that Hooksett will perform in response to an
emergency.

Hazard Specific Annexes have been developed to address special and unique response
procedures not included in the ESF’s or to meet detailed regulatory requirements.
They provide additional detailed information applicable to a particular hazard.

SCOPE
Hooksett’s EOP:

I Addresses the emergencies and disasters likely to occur as described in
The Mitigation Plan located in the Administrative Appendices of this
plan.

2. Includes those actions that suppoit efforts to save lives, protect public
health and safety, and protect property.

3. Comprises all towns departments and agencies, assigned one or more

functions, activities, and/or tasks, to provide response and recovery
activities in support of local operations during an emetgency or disaster.

34




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

a. Department and agency assignments are based upon their day-to-
day responsibilities, statutory/legislative requirements, and/or
Federal regulations.

b. Additional assignments may be made through an executive order
(EQ), as the situation warrants.

4. Provides for the integration and coordination between government, the
private sector, and volunteer organizations involved in emergency
response and recovery efforts.

5. Describes how national (Federal, and other States) resources will be
coordinated to supplement town resources in response to a disaster.

C. STRUCTURE

As shown in Figure I, Components of the Hooksett EOP consist of the following:

1. The format of the Hooksett EOP is consistent with the State/Federal Response
Plan (FRP) using the ESF concept and approach to providing assistance.

2. The Basic Plan, which describes the purpose, scope, situations and assumptions,
hazard analysis, concept of operations, plan management, and authorities of the
town departments and/or agencies in response to an emergency or disaster.

3. Administrative Appendices that include: a list of acronyms/abbreviations, terms
and definitions, a compendium of emergency authorities and directives, and
hazard analysis and assessment, which serve as points of reference and
information for the users.

4. Functional ESF’s that delineate primary and/or co-primary and support agencies
and describe policies, situations, concept of operations, and respounsibilities;
necessary standard operating procedures/guides (SOPs/SOG’s) to implement
functions.

5. Hazard-specific annexes, which include Hazardous Materials, Terrorism, and
Dams, describe special procedures applicable to a particular hazard.

35



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

iList: of A
and A bble

ADMINISTRAII 5
i { Thell
- Basic Plan -

'_Pubhc Works &
Engineert mg

:
,
|
i

numcarmns &
- Aler fmg

-ﬁ'a.uszﬂ.o_rffqri 1

Figure 1: Components of the Hooksett EOP

36



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

D.

ESF DESCRIPTIONS

ESF-1, Transportation — Provides for coordination, control and allocation of
transportation assets in support of the movement of emergency resources inchuding
the evacuation of people, and the redistribution of food and fuel supplies.

ESF-2, Communications and Alerting — Provides emergency warning, information
and guidance to the public. Facilitates the requirements and resources needed to
provide for backup capability for all means of communication.

ESF-3, Public Works & Engineering — Provides for debris clearance, roads,
highways and bridge repairs, engineering, construction, repair and restoration of
essential public works systems and services, and the safety inspection of damaged
public buildings.

ESF-4, Fire Fighting — Provides for mobilization and deployment, and assists in
coordinating structural fire fighting resources to combat forest/wildland or urban
incidents; provide incident management assistance for on-scene incident command
and control operations.

ESF-5, Information and Planning — Provides for the overall management and
coordination of Hooksett’s emergency operations in support of local government.
Collects, analyzes and disseminates critical information on emergency operations for
decision making purposes.

ESF-6, Mass Care & Shelter - Manages and coordinates sheltering, feeding, and
first aid for disaster victims. Provides for temporary housing, food, clothing, and
special human needs in situations that do not warrant mass-care systems. In the
event the local jurisdiction does not have an established Volunteers Active in
Disasters (VOAD), this ESF can serve as the likely alternative for managing the
receipt and distribution of donated goods and services. Provides assistance in
coordinating and managing volunteer resources.

ESF-7, Resource Support — Secures resources through mutual aid agreements and
procurement procedures for all ESF’s, as needed. Provides for coordination and
documentation of personnel, equipment, supplies, facilities, and services used during
disaster response and initial relief operations.

ESF-8, Health and Medical Services — Provides care and treatment for the ill and
injured. Mobilizes trained health and medical personnel and other emergency
medical supplies, materials and facilities. Provides public health and environmental
sanitation services, disease and vector control, and the collection, identification, and
protection of human remains.

37




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

ESF- 9, Search & Rescue — Provides resources for ground, water, and airborne
activities to locate, identify, and remove from a stricken area, persons lost or trapped
in buildings and other structures, Provides for specialized emergency response and
rescue operations.

ESF- 10, Hazardous Materials — Provides response, inspection, containment and
cleanup of hazardous materials accidents or releases.

ESF —11, Food — ldentifies, secures or prepares, and arranges for transportation of
food for mass feeding to affected areas following a disaster.

ESF- 12, Energy — Coordinates with the private sector for the emergency repair and
restoration of critical public energy utilities, (i.e., gas, electricity, etc.). Coordinates
the rationing and distribution of emergency power and fuel, as necessary.

ESF- 13, Law Enforcement & Security — Provides for the protection of life and
property by enforcing laws, orders, and regulations, including the movement of
persons from threatened or hazardous areas. Provides for area security, traffic, and
access control.

ESF- 14, Public Information — Provides for effective collection, control, and
dissemination of public information to inform the general public adequately of
emergency conditions and available assistance. Coordinates a system to minimize
rumors and misinformation during an emergency.

ESF- 15, Volunteers and Donations — Manages the receipt and distribution of
donated goods, volunteers, and services to support response operations and relief
effort in a disaster.

ESF-16, Animal Health — Provides for a coordinated response in the management
and containment of any communicable disease resulting in an animal health
emergency.

38



TOWN OF HOOKSETYT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

SITUATION AND PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS

18

A,

SITUATION

1. The Town of Hooksett is located in the southeast portion of Merrimack County
in South Central New Hampshire. Hooksett is bordered by the Towns of Allenstown
and Bow to the north, Manchester and Auburn to the south, Goffstown, Dunbarton
and Bow to the west, and Candia, Deerfield and Bear Brook State Park to the cast.
The total land area of Hooksett is 37.12 square miles with .93 square miles of water
and approximately 72 of the total land area being rural and wooded. The population
ranges from 12,721 at night, to 36,000 in the daytime. The US Census estimates the
town’s 2008 population to be 13,723.

2. Hooksett is primarily a residential community with limited industrial,
manufacturing, and agricultural activities. The current population of the town is
approximately 13,800 residences. Approximately percent of the town is
residential and percent consisting of industrial and light commercial
development. Commercial development is mainly concentrated in the area of the
industrial park along Hooksett Road and Rte. 3A.

3. Hooksett’s governmental body is a Town Council form of Government. The
Councilors are elected by the voters in March and serve terms of three years. Other
boards-committees for the town consist of a Planning Board, Zoning Board,
Conservation Commission and Recreation Commission.

4. The Merrimack River, which originates from Bow to the North flows in a
Southerly direction through the center of town. The town participates in the National
Flood Insurance Program and has enacted a Floodplain Development Ordinance.
The town is potentially subject to flooding from a series of dams located throughout
the town. The high hazard dams are addressed in the Hazard Specific Annex of this
plan.

5. Hooksett’s Fire and Rescue Department is a full-time department under the
direction of a full -time Fire Chief. There are currently 34 members of the
department. The town fire department operates under individual mutual aid
agreements with the Capital Area Fire Mutual Aid Compact. The fire and Rescue
department is the largest single resource of manpower in the community, but in a
major emergency, it would require additional personnel and equipment to perform all
of its tasks. The central fire station is located within the Town Safety Complex on
Legends Drive and has a second station located in Hooksett Village. The central
station is equipped to accept a generator for emergency power and serves as the
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) for the town.

39




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

6. Hooksett’s Police Department is a full-time department and consists of a Chief,
29 sworn full-time officers, six administrative staff and six dispatch personnel. The
Chief is the operational and administrative head of the department. The police
station is located within the Town Safety complex on Legends Drive and is equipped
with an emergency generator. The department has established mutual aid
agroements with the surrounding communities as well as state and county law
enforcement authorities.

7.  Hooksett’s Public Works Department is a full-time department operating under
a Director with 21 full-time and 1 part-time employee. The facility is located at 210
West River Road and is equipped with a standby generatot for emergency power.

8. Hooksett’s primary Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is located within the
Hooksett Public Safety Complex at 15 Legends Drive and is equipped with a standby
generator for emergency power.

9.  Hooksett’s Recycling and Transfer Department, located at 210 West River Road
consisted of eight full-time and four part-time employees and has a full-time
superintendent. The department maintains a mutual aid agreement with the Town of
Pembroke.

10. The Public Library, located at 17018 Hooksett road consist of three full-time,
six part-time employees, and two volunteers.

11. The community is exposed to many hazards, all of which have the potential to
disrupt the community, cause damage, and create casualties and include earthquake,
flooding, dam failure, hurricane, drought, snow and ice storm, tornado and wildland
fire, Other disaster situations could develop from a fuel or water shortage, power
failure, multiple vehicle accident, hazardous materials, downed aircraft, radiological,
terrorism, or civil unrest.

12, Vulnerable critical facilities that have been identified as requiring special
planning considerations include Town Hall, Safety Complex, Cawley School,
Highway Department, Sewer Pump Station, Pinnacle Pond Pump Station, and the
Hooksett Hydro Station, Pine Hill Sub Station. Emergency plans and procedures can
be developed by these facilities for incorporation into the Hooksett Plan.

B. PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS

1. The towns’ government is primarily responsible for emergency actions and will
commit all available resources to save lives, minimize injury to persons, and
minimize damage to property and the environment,

2. Executing Hooksett’s EOP will save lives and reduces property damage.

40



TOWN OQF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

3. Individuals and organizations identified in this plan have reviewed the plan, are
familiar with its contents and will execute their assigned responsibilities to the best
of their abilities, when required.

4. While it is likely that outside assistance would be available in most large-scale
disaster situations affecting the town and while plans have been developed to
facilitate coordination of this assistance, it is necessary for the Town of Hooksett to
plan and be prepared to carry out disaster response and short-term recovery
operations on an independent basis.

5. Resources identified in this plan may not be available due to other emergencies.

6. It is foreseen that improvements or modifications may become necessary to the
EOP. Therefore, plan users may deviate from the plan to protect life and property if
during an operation they identify a plan deficiency. |

7. Just because hazards have been identified does not mean that they will not
occur. Some hazards cannot be prevented (Earthquake, Hurricane, Winter Storms
ete.).

8. Consistent with the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the State of
New Hampshire’s commitment to comprehensive emergency management, this plan
is concerned with all types of emergency situations that may develop. 1t emphasizes
the capability of the Town of Hooksett’s government to respond to and accomplish
short-term recovery from large-scale disasters.

C. HAZARD ANALYSIS AND ASSESSMENT

The hazard analysis and assessment study is located as the Hazard Mitigation Plan,
in the Administrative Appendices to this EOP.

The following natural or man-made emergencies are the prime consideration of this
Emergency Operations Plan:

1. Multiple Vehicle Accidents 11. Hazardous Materials
2. Snow and Ice Storm Accident
3. Hurricane 12. Fuel Shortage
4, Flooding (Ravine, Ice Jam, 13. Water Outage
Dam Breech) 14. Civil Disturbance
5. Railroad Accident 15, Conflagration
6. Downed Aircraft 16. Tornado
7. Explosion 17. Nuclear Attack (Fallout Risk})
8. Earthquake 18. Terrorist Events
9. Bomb Threat 19. Public Health Emergency
10. Electrical Outage (Outbreak, Epidemic,
Pandemic) 41



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

IH. CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS

A.

GENERAL: This section of the Plan explains Hooksett’s overall approach to an
emergency situation, i.e., what should happen, when, and at whose direction. It
addresses a general sequence of actions before, during, and after the emergency
situation.

1. Relationship Beiween Emergency and Normal Functions. This plan recognizes
the concept that emergency functions for groups involved in emergency managemert
generally parallel their normal day-to-day functions. To the extent possible, the
same personnel and material resources will be employed in both cases. It is
generally true however, that a disaster is a situation in which the usual way of doing
things no longer suffices. It is desirable, and always attempted, to maintain
organizational continuity and to assign familiar tasks to personnel. In large-scale
disasters, however, it may be necessary to draw on peoples’ basic capacities and use
them in areas of greatest need. Day-to-day functions that do not contribute directly
to the emergency operation may be suspended for the duration of any emergency.
Efforts that would normally be required of those functions will be redirected to
support agencies, to accomplish the emergency tasks by the individuals and agency
concerned.

2. Responsibilities and Control of Personnel. Heads of departments, individuals,
and agencies arc responsible for emergency functions as specified in this plan. They
retain control over their employees and equipment. Each agency is responsible for
developing Implementing Instructions to be followed during response operations.
Legislative powers, not otherwise vested in another body as provided by the Town
Charter, are vested in the Town Council.

3. Requests for State Assistance. When it is determined that an emergency is
beyond the control and resources of Hooksett’s local government, a request for
assistance is made to the State through the State Emergency Management to the
Governor. Request for State assistance will first be approved by a member of the
EOC Command and Control Section and then submitted to the State. (See
Attachments)

42




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

B. EMERGENCY OPERATION PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

1. Plan Activation Levels. Emergency situations vary markedly in speed of onset and
in their potential for escalation to disaster proportions. The extent to which the EOP is
activated depends upon the type of emergency situation, its potential for escalation, its
geographical extent, and other factors. To serve the needs of Hooksett, the Emergency
Management Organizations developed four levels of plan activation. They are as follows:

o Level N -Normal Operation - At this level, there are no reported hazards or emergency
situations identified that require special monitoring or consideration. (Example -
Normal day-to-day activities takes place)

e Level IR -Increased Readiness - At this level, a potential hazard (Winter Storm,
Hurricane) or an emergency situation has been identified that is being monitored, but
does not require activation of personnel (Example — personnel monitor the track of
Winter Storm). Equipment is readied and resources are checked for availability.

o Level PA -Partial Activation — At this level, a hazardous and/or emergency situation is
active, which requires a partial activation of the EOP. The incident will dictate who and
what actions need to be taken. (Example — Fire w/limited evacuation may require the
opening of a shelter.)

e Level FA -Full Activation - At this level, a hazard and/or emergency situation is active,
which requires the full activation of the EOP and all Emergency Management
Organization personnel. The EOC is activated and fully staffed at this level. (Example
— An event/incident that requires the coordination of all Departments, Organizations. )

2. General Sequence of Actions. Either the Incident Commanders and/or other
members of the Emergency Management Organization may call for a higher Level
of Activation of the plan. When the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is fully
activated, the Command and Control Section will assume overall command of the
Town’s resources.

C. PHASES OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

The Hooksett EOP (HEOP) is concerned with many types of hazards that the
jurisdiction may be exposed to. The HEOP should also take a comprehensive and
integrated approach to addressing the jurisdiction’s capabilities and shortfalls to
respond to the hazards identificd in the jurisdiction’s Hazard Analysis and
Assessment to the HEOP. In doing so, the plan will take into consideration the
following four phases of emergency management:




TOWN OF HOOKSETT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Mitigation

Mitigation actions eliminate or reduce the probability of some disaster
occurrences and also include long-term activities that lessen the undesirable
effects of unavoidable hazards or reduce the degree of hazard risk., Some
mitigation examples include flood plain management and public education
programs.  Mitigation seeks to prevent disasters and to reduce the
vulnerability of people to disasters that may strike. Hazard mitigation should
follow all disasters.

Preparedness

Preparedness activities develop emergency response capabilities. Planning,
exercising, training, mitigation, developing public information programs and
alerting and warning are among the activities conducted under this phase of
emergency management to ensure the most effective and efficient response in
a disaster. Preparedness seeks to establish capabilities to protect people from
the effects of disasters in order to save the maximum number of lives,
minimize injuries, reduce damage, and protect property. Procedures and
agreements to obtain emergency supplies, material, equipment, and people are
developed.

Response

Response is the actual provision of emergency services during a disaster.
These activities can reduce casualtics, limit damage, and help to speed
recovery.  Response activities include directing emergency operations,
evacuation, shelter, and other protective measures.

Recovery

Recovery is both a short-term and a long-term process to restore the
jurisdiction to normal conditions in the aftermath of any emergency or disaster
involving extensive damage. Short-term operations assess damages, restore
vital services to the community, and provide for basic needs to the public.
Long-term recovery focuses on restoring the community to its normal or to an
improved state of affairs. Examples of recovery actions are provision of
temporary housing, restoration of government services, and reconstruction of
damaged arcas.

11

44




TOWN CF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

D. ORGANIZATION AND ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

1. General. This section of the Basic Plan establishes the emergency organization that
will be elied on to respond to emergency situations. It includes a listing by position
and organization of what kind of tasks are to be performed. A matrix of organizations
and areas of responsibility, including functions to show primary and supporting roles
can be found in Figure 2, Page 13.

2. Emergency Organization. The Emergency Management Organization for Hooksett
consists of the following:

a. Town Council Chairman g. Fire Chief

b. Town Administrator h. Highway Manager

c. Emergency Management Director 1, SAU Superintendent |
d. Assistant EMD j. Finance Director |
e. Code Officer

f. Police Chief

3. Organization

By the direction of the Town Administrator, the Emergency Management Director
will notify each department with emergency or disaster responsibility, who have
multi-hazard emergency operation plans and implementing procedures. The
organization to implement the Hooksett EOP under emergency or disaster
conditions consist of the EM Director and town agencies having primary and
supporting roles as specified in the functional ESF’s.

Chief Executive

Emerganoy Management
Diractor

EQG
Operations Officar

Pullie Ifermitan |

Gtiicar
ESF4
Pute Wrerudon

Rumer Cantrol
Center Unk

FOC Support Sl
£l Coursd
Sadsty Officar

Information &

Logistics Section
Planning Section &

Administeation &
Finance Sectian

| Tamaum

f I 1
Emergonsy Servicss tntrastructare Muman Sarvices
Pranch Branch Branch
— v

L
Fire Fighticg

EsF3
Eaweh & Hescua

] ]
Ieteensiton B Plasalrg Servica Brovich

[

| Suppott Branch |

Geeuad SupportUnit Resourcs Uni
[ ESFT
Trsasperafiens Resoiice Supparl

EsF1 ESF
Transportabion Mata Care & Sheier |

Branch

E5F3 EErp
Pubbe Warks & Hehth & Meesl
Englesing Sercieen
tpeal Luason Unit

EsF2 ESF-15
Ensray Anwal Heakh

Figure 2: Hooksett Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Organizations 45

12



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

a. Command and Control Section

Emergency Management is the primary agency assigned to the
command and control section and will ensure the following:

1) Coordinate all emergency response functions in the
Hooksett Emergency Operation Center.

2) Establish and maintain a facility that will be used as the
HEOC to provide centralized direction, coordination, and
control of emergency operations.

3 Develop EOC activation/deactivation SOPs/Sags, personnel
staffing  requirements, and  functional  operaling
procedures/guides.

Town Administrator

Emergency Management
Director

EOC Support Staff Liaison Officer
Legal Counsel

Public Information Officer
ESF-14
Public Information

I Rumor Controd Center I

[ I { 1

Opearations Section Information & Planning Section Logistics Section Administrative & Finance Section

Figure 3: Hooksett Contmand and Control Section Orgunization

46

13



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

b. Operations Section

This section will provide a discussion of the elements included in the operations
section regarding when, partially or fully activated, with the emergency support
functions provided to assist in an emergency situation. This section will identify
each of the ESF’s and the functional activities as assigned. Provide an
organizational chart to illustrate the structure.

Figure 4: Hooksett Operations Section Organization

HEOC
Operations Section

I
l I |

14

17 Infrastructure Branch F Human Needs Branch I ( Emergency Services Branch
ESF-1 ESF-6 ESF-4
Transportation Mass Care & Shelter Fire Fighting
Hooksett Hooksett Hooksett
ESF-1 ESF-6 ESF-4
ESF-3 ESF-8 ESF-9
Public Works & Health & Medical Services Search & Rescue
Engineering Hooksett Hooksett
Hooksett ESF-8 ESF-2
ESF-3
ESF-12 ESF-16 ESF-10
Energy Animat Heaith Hazardous Materials
Hooksett Hooksett Hooksett
ESF-12 ESF-16 ESF-10
ESF-13
|.aw Enforcement &
Security
Hookseit
ESF-13

47



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

c. Information & Planning Section

This section will include information and planning activities that
are needed to support response operations. This should include
functions for collecting and processing information; developing
briefings, reports, and other materials; displaying pertinent
information on maps, charts, and status boards; consolidating
information for response and recovery actions; providing for the
tracking of actions taken; and providing technical services in
support of local operations. Provide an organizational chart
illustrating the working environment within the element.

Information & Planning Section
ESF -6
Hoaksett
ESF6

Clerieal
Staff
to be assigned as neadod

[ ]

Information Branch Planning Branch
|
1 1 ]
Lacal Liaison Unit Situation Dosumentation & Analysis Unit Technical
Unit Services Unit
Message Genter Unit
AgtianlEvent Reports. | | Data Interpratation
Tracking
Display Briefings L| ©ls!Mpping
Analysis

*Clerical Staff to augment all elements of section as needs to be assioned

Figure 5: Hooksett Information and Planning Section Organization
(Staffing patterns are dependent upon the severity of the emergency)

15

48




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

d. Logistics Section

This section includes activities that provide facilities and services
in support of response and recovery efforts.

Hooksett
Logistics
Section
|
] ]
Services Branch I Suppert Branch '
ESF.2 Ground Support ESF -7
|| Communications and Alerting ESF -1 an Resource Support
Hooksett Transportation Hooksett
ESF-2 Hooksett ESF- ESF-7
ESF - 11 ESF - 15
a Food Volunteers & Donations | | Security Unit
Hooksett Hooksett Hooksett
ESF-11 ESF-18 ESF -13
Lodging Unit Facifities Unit

Figure 6: Hooksett Logistics Section Organization

e. Administrative & Finance Section
This section provides support to the response and recovery efforts as
required.
Administrative
3
Finance Section
I
I |
Financiat Fiscal
Management Services Services
Policy Accounting
Controls/Audifs I Procurement/Obligations
Reports & Document Control

Payroli

Figure 7: Hooksett Administrative & Finance Section Organization

49



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Recovery Section
Hooksett EOP

Individual Hazard Public
Assistance Mitigation Assistance

E. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Town Administrator has overall responsibility for emergency management
functions and assisted in these duties by the Hooksett Emergency Management
Director (EMD). Specific responsibilities for primary and support agencies are
outlined in the functional ESF’s. Generally, the following applies:

a. All town departments, agencies and offices

e Insure orderly succession of officials for all key positions in each
department to maintain operations during unforeseen circumstances.

o Insure maintenance and safeguarding of key records and documents.

e Maintain a system for internal status reporting on manpower and other
resources, damage estimation, and procedures to respond to emergencies.

o Routinely update and maintain emergency procedures that prescribe in
detail the responsibilities of the agency during an emergency, including
notification of response personnel, twenty-four shifts, and other
appropriate measures.

b. Town departments, agencies and offices, as designated in the ESF’s as having
emergency responsibilitics, provide and maintain the capability to carry out
the emergency functions as described. Agency roles are defined as primary
and support.

« Departments, agencies or offices that have a primary responsibility for an
emergency function will organize, supervise and coordinate all activities
within that function area. Primary organizations are responsible for
specifying the actions of the supporting elements and establishing coherent
requirements that can be effectively and efficiently carried out.

e Departments, agencies and offices that have a support responsibility for
and emergency function will respond as required.

17




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

¢. The Hooksett town government has ovetall responsibility, by law, for the
direction and control of emergency disaster operations with in the Town of
Hooksett NH. The Hookseft emergency management director has the
responsibility for the development and implementation of emergency
management programs designed to provide for rapid and effective response to
emergencics. The Hooksett EM Director should plan for the protection of life
and property within the Hooksett community.

d. Non-town elements may have primary and supporting functions within the
Hooksett Emergency Operation Plan.

e The American Red Cross (ARC) ha a primary response function fo
mitigate suffering by providing emergency mass care, food, clothing, |
shelter, first aid, and aid to families. |

e. Volunteers, non-profit, charitable and/or religious organizations may provide
assistance in registration, identification, medical assistance, shelter, mass feeding
collection of resources, and other support functions at the town level.

All Tasked All tasked organizations” includes those identified above and all
Organizations other government or private sector organizations that have been
assigned tasking in the EOP to perform response functions.

¢ Maintain current internal personnel notification rosters and
Implementing Instructions to perform assigned tasks.

¢ Negotiate, coordinate, and prepare mutual aid agreements, as
appropriate.

¢ Analyze need and determine specific communications resource
requirements.

¢ Work with EMC to ensure communication equipment and
procedures are compatible.

+ Identify potential sources of additional equipment and supplies.

+ Provide for continuity of operations by taking action to:

51



TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

e Ensures lines of succession for Departments Heads are established.

» DProtect records, facilities, and organizational equipment deemed
essential for sustained government functions and conducting
emergency operations.

e Ensures that alternate operating locations are available should the
primary location suffer damage, become inaccessible, or require
evacuation.

s Protects emergency response staff. This includes actions to:

- Obtain, as appropriate, all necessary protective respiratory
devices and clothing, detection and decontamination equipment,
and antidotes for personnel assigned to perform tasks during
response operations.

- Ensure assigned personnel are trained on the use of protective
gear, detection and decontamination devices and antidotes.

- Provide security at facilities.

- Rotate staff or schedule time off to prevent burnout.

- Malke stress counseling available.

¢ Ensure the functioning of communication and other essential
equipment. This includes actions to:

- Test, maintain, and repair communication and warning

equipment.
- Stockpile supplies and repair equipment.

F. ADMINISTRATION AND LOGISTICS

1. Administration

This section addresses administrative actions necessary to satisty the tasking in this
basic plan. All individuals, organizations with task assignments shall adhere to the
following administrative procedures:

e This plan is activated and terminated at the discretion of the Command and
Control Section in consultation with the appropriate emergency responders.

e  Each agency/department is responsible for maintaining all legal documents
affecting the organization and administration of emergency management
functions. It is the responsibility of these officials to ensure that all records
are secure and protected from damage.

52

19



TOWN OF HOOKSETT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Each agency/department maintains a roster of all assigned personnel,
including volunteers, with personal information, and times and places
worked. This information is forwarded to the EOC, when activated, or
to the Finance Director to assure coverage under the Workman’s
Compensation Law.

Fach agency/department maintains an inventory of their equipment and
resources. Each agency records the resource used in support of
emergency operations and provides this information to the EOC for
consolidation, analysis, and possible reimbursement. Records are also
kept of resources acquired and any financial obligations incurred. These
records are forwarded to the Finance Director for processing via the
Board of Selectman.

If local resources are inadequate during emergency operations, assistance
is requested according to mutual aid agreements and emergency
negotiated understandings. 1t may take the form of equipment, supplies,
or personnel. Assistance may come from other jurisdictions, the private
sector or voluntary organizations. All agreements and understandings
are negotiated by appropriate officials and formalized in writing
whenever possible.

Reports are made to the EOC noting event status, casualties, damage
assessment, evacuation and shelter status, radiation levels and resource
needs during and following activation. These reports are kept on file for
insurance purposes, damage reporting, critiques and mitigation planning.

Emergency Management activities are an initiative of the Town of
Hooksett as a governmental function for the protection of the public
peace, health and safety, and neither the Town nor its agents and
representatives of the Town, or any individual, receiver, firm,
partnership, corporation, association, or trustee, or any of the agents, in
good faith carrying out, complying with or attempting to comply with
any order, rule or regulation promulgated pursuant to Hooksett’s
Emecrgency Management Ordinance, shall be liable for any damage
sustained to persons or property ad the result of said activity.

Copies of Mutual Aid Agreements, Letters of Understanding, and
Memorandums of Agreement currently in effect are located with the
department/agency responsible for the agreement. Copies of initiated
agreements are available through the department/agency.

20

53




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

e The EOC will keep an event log (See Attachment Seven) in sufficient detail
to provide historical data on each significant event and the agency's
response. The reasons for decisions/actions that are different from
procedures in the Implementing Instructions should also be documented.

e The EOC will keep a radio log (See Attachment Eight) for all radio

communications relating to the emergency. The radio log shall contain the
times and content of the transmission received and sent.

Logistics

All individuals and agencies tasked above shall ensure that the following
logistical support requirements are satisfied:

« Damaged equipment shall be repaired or replaced.

e All expenditures will be submitted to the Finance Director via the Board of
Selectman for processing.

e Bills will be marked to identify their association with the emergency.

G. ALERT AND NOTIFICATION

1.

Notification

The Town of Hooksett may receive notification of a disaster or impending
emergency from multiple sources that include state alert and notification points,
focal dispatch, National Weather Services and the State Emergency Management.
Upon receipt of notification, the sequence of events will be as follows:

Alert

The Hooksett Emergency Management Director would be alerted to disaster or
cmergency situation twenty four (24) hours day or night by Hooksett
Communication (Dispatch), NJJOEM, NH State Police or other agencies.
Depending upon the severity of the incident.

Additionally, in the event of loss of communications, the Hooksett
Communication Center is capable of notifying the HOEM by cell phone or radio.
Primary and support agency notification are described in detail under the
agency’s assigned ESF.

The Hooksett EM Director or his designee is notified by Dispatch and depending
on the severity of the event or incident. Further notification and or activation
(partial or full) of the Hooksett EOP are initiated according to the proper
SOG/SOPs. Notification of the NHOEM is initiated according to proper
procedures.

21

54




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

3. Operations
The State of New Hampshire has enacted legislation for a statewide-enhanced

E-911 telephone system. Under the statewide system, all Jandline emergency
calls are sent to the E-911 Center. Once the operator determines the type of
emergency, the call is automatically routed to the designated emergency
service.

Emergency services dispatching is normally carried out by the Hooksett Police
Department for police and Concord Fire Alarm for fire and EMS.

a. Once a fire/rescue emergency call is received, the dispatch center notifies
emergency personnel via tone-activated pagers. Normally all radio
communications with responding units will go through the dispatchers.

b. Police emergency calls are communicated to the on duty officer via the
radio network, landline or cell phone.

¢. Highway Department communicates via a town frequency and is
dispatched by the police department dispatch.

4.  When the EOC is activated, all radio communications with the EOC will
normally be on the town’s local government frequency. Any deviation from
this will be at the discretion of the EOC. Once personnel arrive at the EOC,
designated telephone numbers assigned to the town hall, fire and police
departments will be transferred to the EOC. Additionally, landline phones
and/or cell phones can be used to angment the radio system.

5 Information and communications will be maintained during an emergency
using PLAIN ENGLISH to avoid confusion at the incident. Communication
among responders will determine methods and terminology by which ALL
responders will communicate and exchange information during an emergency
response. This will include networks and frequencies used at the incident.

6. Communications between the Incident Commander (IC) and the EOC should
focus on:

a. The IC establishing and maintaining communications among all
responding units.

b. The EOC establishing and maintaining communications with all units
under their direction.

22




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

7. Communication between Hooksett’s EOC and the State of New Hampshire
State Emergency Management will be via fand line phone or cell phone.
Hooksett currently does not have a radio capable of communicating on the
state’s channels. However, the State EOC can communicate on the fire and
police frequencies in an emergency.

8 In the event that normal communication systems become ineffective, amateur
radio networks can be used to augment existing communications.

H. ACTIVATION AND DEPLOYMENT -

1. There is no hard fast rule for activating and the deployment of emergency
response units and/or resources. As with any emergency or disaster, activation
of the emergency support functions, the EOC, and the deployment of needed
resources will be incident dependent and based upon identified needs of the
disaster victims.

2. The Hooksett EOP will be utilized to address particular requirements of a
given disaster or emergency situation. Selected functional ESF’s will be
activated based upon the nature and scope of the event and the level of Town
support needed to respond.

3.  Based upon the requirements of the situation, EMD will notify Local
departments and agencies regarding activation of some or all of the functional
ESF’s and other structures of the Hookseit EOP. Priority for notification will
be given to primary agencies as specified by the ESF’s.

4. When activation of the Hooksett EOP (partial or full) is initiated, and unless
otherwise specified, all department, agency, and office representatives having
primary and/or co-primary roles and responsibilities, as specified in the
Hooksett EOP, will deploy to the Hooksett EOC, Safety Center located on
Legends Drive, Hooksett NH and activate their respective EST component to
the Hooksett EOP and relevant SOPs/SOG’s.

a. In the event the primary EOC is inaccessible/usable, staff will report to
the alternate EOC.

5. Emergency situations vary markedly in speed of onset and in their potential
for escalation to disaster proportions. The extent to which the EOP is
activated depends upon the type of emergency situation, its potential for
escalation, its geographical extent, and other factors. To serve the needs of
Hooksett, the Emergency Management Organization has developed the four
fevels of plan activation.

23

56




TOWN OF HOOKSETT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

6. General Sequence of Actions. Either the Incident Commanders and/or other

members of the Emergency Management Organization may call for a higher
Level of Activation of the plan. When the Emergency Operations Center
(EOC) is fully activated, the Policy Group will assume overall command of
the Town’s resources.

I LOCAL TO LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL INTERFACE

The identification and notification procedures for Hooksett, State, Federal
saterface to follow are described in the functional and hazard specific ESF’s.
Generally, the concepts are as follows:

1.

The Town of Hooksett will interface with other local jurisdictions, as well
as State, Federal, agencies, as appropriate. The mechanisms (i.e.,
Situation Reports (Sit-Reps), radio, telephone, software applications,
would occur through ESF DC, Direction and Control, and ESF 2
Communications. Standardized forms are to be used to achieve linkage.

Once the HEOP and HEQC have been activated, then linkage with State,
Federal Emergency Management Agencies will be maintained. Specific
details regarding the various ESF’s will establish and maintain the
required coordination points addressed in the BESE’s components to the
HEOQP and associated SOPs/SOG’s.

Point of Contact, ESF DC, which correlates State and Federal functional
counterparts and primary contacts, will be provided during the initial
notification and there after upon changes in status. In addition, a current
copy of Emergency Support Function Assignment Matrix, of the HEOP,
would be attached to the initial notification to the State Emergency
Management Agency.

Status Reports, complied by ESF 5, Information and Planning, will be
forwarded to the first response level of State EOC and FEMA.

The Town of Hooksett to the State of NH interfacing will be specified in
the HEOP and will be guided by ESF DC Direction and Control, and
ESF 2 Communications. Unless otherwise noted, the Hooksett Town
Administrator has direction and control within the Town of Hookselt and
the emergency management director is appointed and shall have direct
responsibility for the organization, administration and operation for the
emergency management within the town of Hooksett.

24

57




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

J.

CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS (CQOP)

1. The major thrust of an emergency operations plan is to protect the lives and

properties of those involved in a disaster and return the situation to normal.
Disasters can interrupt, paralyze, and/or destroy the ability of local government
to carry out specific executive, legislative and judicial functions. Therefore, it is
imperative that the Town of Hooksett establishes and maintains the capability to
provide mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery functions during
emergencies or disasters.

. The Town of Hooksett Emergency Management is responsible for developing,

maintaining, and exercising a COOP Plan for the town. EM is also responsible
for ensuring that all departments, agencies, and offices develop, maintain, and
exercise a COOP Plan outlining how essential services/functions will be
maintained during emergencies/disasters, respectively.

In order to ensure effective emergency operations, the following should be
considered:

a. That the Town of Hooksett provides a capability to preserve, maintain,
and/or reconstitute its ability to function under the threat or occurrence of
any emergency and/or disaster that could disrupt governmental operations or
services.

b. That the Town of Hooksett departments, agencies, and offices provide for
the following during emergency operations:

1) Each element have designated and trained personnel available for EOC
deployment; and

2) Each element maintains and updates notification lists, twenty-four hour
staffing capabilities, and standard operating  procedures/guides
(SOPs/SOG’s).

c. Each of the emergency response departments, agencies, and offices will also
develop and maintain policies, plans and SOPs/SOG’s to ensure the
capability to provide essential services/functions is sustained during
emergencies and/or disasters, including addressing relocating emergency
operations to another facility or alternate EOC.

23

58




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

4. In the event the primary EOC is inaccessible, is damaged to the point it is rendered
inhabitable or is destroyed, the EM Director will take action to relocate town
emergency operations to the alternate EOC site located at Station, 1 Riverside Ave.
The Town Administrator with recommendation of the HEM Director is authorized to
make the decision to relocate the EOC should conditions warrant that the decision be
made.

K. CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT (COGY/LINE OF SUCCESSION

1. In order to maintain civil order and control, it is imperative for all levels of
government to identify clear lines of succession and establish the mechanisms to
ensure government continues to function during emergencies and/or disasters.

2. The following is the Line of Succession that has been established for the State of New
Hampshire. The President of the Senate will succeed the Governor. The order of
succession will be as they are listed below.

Governor

President of the Senate

Speaker of the House

Secretary of State

Emergency Management Director

oo TP

3. To ensure the Town of Hooksett maintains the capability to effectively control and
coordinate emetgency response operations during times of emergency/disasters, the
following Line of Succession is established:

a. Town Administrator

b. Assistant Town Administrator

¢. Emergency Management Director
d. Fire Chief

e. Police Chief

4. The EMD will develop and maintain a Continuity of Government (COG) /Line of
Succession Plan for the town of Hooksett.

L. RECOVERY AND DEACTIVATION

Deactivation of emergency operations is dependent on a wide range of variables that must
be satisfied before such an event may occur. Some basic principles that should be
followed before deactivation are:

1. Ensure that all health and safety issues are resolved prior to full deactivation;

2. That all essential services and facilities are re-established and operational;

26




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

3. Partial deactivation of the Hooksett EOP, in particular functional ESF’s, may
oceur only when all issues within the specific functional area are resolved;

4. Recovery operations may be initiated during response operations;

5. Deactivation of response operations may be followed by the recovery operation;
and

6. Final deactivation of all operational activities will only occur with authority
from the Chairman of the Board of Selectmen and in coordination with
appropriate local, State, and F ederal governments.

1IV. PLAN MANAGEMENT

A. Development. This plan is the principle source of documentation on Hooksett’s
emergency management activities. Almost every agency of the government has
responsibility for developing and maintaining some part of this plan. Overall the
Hooksett Emergency Management Director (EMD) will carry out coordination of this
process. The development of the ESF’s, SOG’s/SOPs, alerting and notification list, and
resource inventories, shall be developed by the primary and support agencies within the
Town’s functional ESF’s described.

It is necessary for emergency management planning and operations to be coordinated
across jurisdictional boundaries. In addition, the development will include the
coordination between Hooksett, The State of NH and the Federal governments to insure
the necessary link with all jurisdictions having emergency response capabilities arc met.
The nature and extent of this coordination will be coordinated through the Town of
Hooksett’s EMD, and all personnel involved will be fully informed. Nothing in the
process of coordinating and support should be interpreted as relieving agency heads of
their responsibilities for emergency planning.

B. Maintenance.
All primary and support agencies with emergency responsibilitics whether private or
State, shall integrate their planning efforts in the maintenance, implementation, and

exercising of the HEOP.

1. The Hooksett Office of Emergency Management will conduct plan review and
revisions annually, with the assistance from the NHOEM.

2 The Town of Hooksett should submit any and all changes to the HEOP to the
Department of Safety — Division of Fire Safety and Emergency Management.

27




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

3. Review of the functional ESF’s by the respective primary and support agencies will
be conducted every two years; SOG’s/SOPs conducted yearly; resources
inventories and notification/recall list on a six (6) month basis.

4. Review procedures following critiques of actual emergency operations and/or
exercises and revise where deficiencies were noted. Revisions and/or updates
within forty-five (45) days.

5. Major changes that affect the Situation and Assumptions and Concept of
Operations will be made as required. The department heads must approve major
changes. Authority to revise and/or update routine documents such as
SOG’s/SOPs, notification and recall list, and resource inventories, shall be made
by the primary and support agencies.

6. All revisions, and/or updating shall be forwarded to the Hooksett Office of
Emergency Management for review, editing, publication, and distribution to all
holders of the Hooksett Emergency Operation Plan.

The following is a listing of individuals, agencies, and department heads responsible for development
and maintenance of each plan element:

Emergency Support Function Responsible Department

1. Transportation Highway Department

2. Communications and Alerting Emergency Management

3.  Public Works and Engineering Highway department

4,  Fire Fighting Fire Department

5.  Information and Planning Community Development

6. Mass Care and Shelter Family Services

7.  Resource Support Recycling and Transfer

8.  Health and Medical Services Fire Department & Health Officer
9.  Search and Rescue Fire Department

10. Hazardous Materials Fire Department

11. Food and Water Family Services

12. Energy Building Department

13. Law Enforcement and Security Police Department

14. Public Information Librarian & Community Development
15. Volunteers and Donations Family Services

16. Animal Heaith Police Department

7. A matrix of all primary and support agencies for each of the identified Emergency
Support functions may be found in Figure 8 ESF Matrix of Primary and Support
agencies.

28




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Emergency Support Functions
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

—
L

14 15 16

Department / Organizations

Fire Fighting
Information & Planning
Mass Care
Resource Support
Health & Medical Sves,
Search & Rescue
Hazardous Materials
Feod & Water
Energy
Law Enforcement & Security
Public Information
Volunteers & Donations
Animal Health

Communications & Alerting
Public Works & Engineering

Transportation

Town Council and Town Administrator
Highway Department/Public Works r ]
Emergency Management
Fire Deparlment 5 5

il v w| =
¥z}

Police Depaetment S P

Community Development

Family Services

Recycling and Transfer
Health Officer
Code Enforcement S

Patks & Recreation
School Distict 8
Waste Water/Water Utilitics S
Goflstown Truck Center S
Emerpgency Relief Commiitee

w| ]| | wa| ta| ta| | Ll =
o]

e
| o wal | va| we| o wa| Lo | W LAl L wa| W

Food Pantry

Knights of Columbus
Kiwanis Club

Elliott Hospital S
Catholic Medical Center g
Merrimack County Sheriff S S
Merrimack County Attorney’s Office S
Capital Area Compact § S S
E-911
Ares/Races S
North Side Animal Hospital

i Laf vaf w2
<]

QOshomne’s Agway
American Red Cross 5 S 5

Salvation Army S
Manchester AHN S 5
SENHHMMAD S
CNHHMRT S
PSNH

National Grid

Tennessee Gas

62

29



TOWN OF HOOKSETT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

Department / Organizations

Emergency Support Functions

h

6 7 3 9 10

11 12

ot
W

et
w

Transpor
tation

Communications &

Alerting

Public Works &

Engineering

Fire Fighting

Information & Flanning

Mass Care
Resource Support
Health & Medical Sves.
Search & Rescue
Hazardous Materials

Food & Water

Energy

Law Enforcement &

Security

Public Information

Volunteers & Donations

Animal Health

NI Maring Patrol

NH Department of Envirenmental Services

NH Fish and Game

NH Department of Health & Human Sves.

NH Department of Safely/State Police

72}
| al |

NH Department of Safety/Emergency
Medical Services

NH Bureau of Homeland Security
Emergency Management

NH Department of Agriculture

NH Armey National Guard

NH Fire Marshal

NH Department of Resources & Economic
Development

United State Department of Justice

NH Federal Fire Mutual Aid

NH Depariment of Transportation

5

NH State Police

NH Public Works, Mutual Aid

Civil Air Patrol

DHART

30

63




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

C. Deficiencies. This plan may contain deficiencies that will not become evident until the plan
is activated or exercised. Deficiencies noted should be summarized and submitted in writing
to the EMC with ten working days of the event.

D. Document Control:

1. Hooksett Emergency Management has established a Document Control System for all
required planning documents (e.g., Radiclogical Emergency Response Plan (RERP)
and Hazardous Materials Plan and Terrorism Annex).

2. The Hooksett EM Director is responsible for administering the system.
a. The document control system includes, but not limited to, the following:

1)  Inventory Control Numbering System for plans.

2)  List of plans with control numbers.

3)  Identify the location of where the plans are stored/maintained (e.g.,
EOC, EM, Library).

4)  Record of plan revisions.

5)  Plan distribution list.

E. Training and Exercises

1. The EMD will develop a program with annual training and exercise
components to cvaluate the capability of the Town of Hooksett to respond
to minor, major, and catastrophic disasters. The program is also designed
to enhance the training of local and volunteer personne] on their roles and
responsibilities in the four phases of emergency management (i.e.,
preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation).

2. The training and exercise programs will help to ensure the operational
readiness of the town’s emergency support functions and local emergency
responders through the design and delivery of courses, professional
development seminars and workshops, and hazard specific exercises (e.g.,
animal health and terrorism related exercises and Radiological Emergency
Preparedness Exercises for commercial nuclear power plants) to evaluate
established plans and procedures/guides that are activated during an
emergency situation at all levels of the emergency management system.

3. After each hazard-specific exercise, a critique is held to allow participants
to provide input into the development of an After-Action Report (AAR)
that captures all recommended changes to existing policies, plans, and
procedures/guides. This will assist in establishing and maintaining an
Improvement Plan to ensure deficiencies are being adequately addressed.

3

64




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

V. AUTHORITY AND REFERENCES

A.

B.

Statutes and Regulations

Authority for this Plan and Annexes is contained in U.S. Public Laws 81-920 and
93-288, as amended, the State of New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated as
amended, and applicable local ordinances. By law, the Town Administrator is
responsible for all emergency operations in the community and has the authority
to appoint an Emergency Management Director, delegating said person with the
power to establish an Emergency Management organization to carry out the
various phases of the emergency plan. Operations under this plan will commence
on orders of the Town Administrator, or his/her designee, in the event of an
imminent or existing emergency situation.

Appendix C, Authority of Emergency Response Agencies, describes a compiled
list of authorities and regulations that reflect Federal, State, and local agencies,
departments, and/or offices authority to respond and initiate emergency response
procedures. Additionally, hazard-specific Annexes may contain supplemental
authorities and regulations.

References

The following documents serve as guidance and reference in the development,
maintenance and execution of this Local EOP:

1. Federal Emergency Management Agency, Managing The Emergency

Consequences of Terrorist Incidents, Interim Planning Guide for State and
Local; Governments, July 2002.

2. Federal Emergency Management Agency, State and Local Guide (SLG) -
101, Guide For All-Hazard Emergency Operations Planning, September
1996.

3. Federal Emergency Management Agency, CPG 1-8A, A Guide for the
Review of State and Local Emergency Operations Plans, October 1992.

4. Federal Response Plan, April 1999.

5. Federal Emergency Management Agency, CPG 1-10, Guide for the
Development of a State and Local Continuity of Government Capability.

6. Federal Emergency Management Agency, CPG 1-20, Guide for EOC
Operations.

32

65




TOWN OF HOOKSETT
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN

7. State of New Hampshire, Department of Safety, Division of Fire Safety
and Emergency Management, Emergency_ Operations Plan (EOP),
currently under revision.

8. Federal Emergency Management Agency, FEMA 321, Public Assistance
Policy Digest, October 2001.

9. Federal Emergency Management Agency, FEMA 322, Public Assistance
Public Assistance Guide, July 2001.

C. Authority of Local Emergency Response Agencies

. Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief & Emergency Assistance Act, U.S. Public
Laws 93-288, as amended

- Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, U.S. Public Laws 81-920, as amended

- New Hampshire Chapter 107-C: 8, Local Organization for Emergency
Management

- New Hampshire Chapter 106 PD

- New Hampshire Chapter 154, FD

- Town of Hooksett, Emergency Management Ordinance

66

33



Staff Report

Town Council Agenda Order

Date: 11/09/16

Title:

Background and Discussion of Issues

Currently the Town Council has "Scheduled Appointments” under section XlI
(12) of their Order of Business in the Town Council Rules of Procedures.
Often times the appointment needs to be moved up on the agenda to present
or discuss items, since there may be public input or audience participation
based on that appointment.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Council motion to approve changing the Council's agenda "Order of Business”
in the Town Council Rules of Procedures by moving Scheduled Appointments
to section V (5) after Special Recognitions and renumbering the remaining
agenda as appropriate.

Fiscal Impact

None.

Donna Filzpatrick, Adminisirative Services Coordinator

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur

67




Staff Report

Title: Sewer TIF Presentation

Date: 11/9/16

Background and Discussion of Issues

Stuart Amett with ADG will make a presentation on he findings with recommendations by the Sewer TIF commitiee. See altached presentation and
minutes from the 1017/18 Planning Board meeting and the 16/19/16 communily iformation meeating heid al the library.

The findings of the sewer TIF committee are as follows:

.3A needs sewer infrasteucture; -Targeted area should be as designed for TIF including exit 10 and exit 11 area, no Residential;-TIF District Plan should
be drafted and adepted by Town Council befare next assessment date (April 1, 2017),;-WITHOUT any {unding comsmitments bul; -WITH $ Cap {ex:
$18m) if approved by voters in subsequent Warrants; -Build and finance in two phases -60/40 Public/Private is target and -Cost-sharing formula agreed

upon

The recommendations of the sewer TIF commitlee are s follows:

-Place a Warrant arlicle for pre-consiruction planning-engineering work for the amount of $645,000 at 2017 Town Meeting; -Fund the $845,000 so 1hat it
is TEF raimbursement aligible; -Werk with private owaess in 2017 for pledges; -Be ready to make a “go” or "no go” dedision for Town Meeling 2018; -IF
“g0*, praceed with the exit that is most ready, 40% match commitied

There are a number questions which still remain and need to be addressed as follows:

_Nead addiional info an assessed value of properties and the potential build-out potential and uses of the TIF area; Has NHDOT baen cantacted and
what is their reaction to further buitd-out on Rie3A?; There presently are teaffic complaints on Roule 3A and what will the impact an Rie 3A be as a result
of additional tratic from the potential build-out?; Will sewer capacity be available afier legal issues with the Hooksett Sewer Gommission are rescived?;
What will the tax impact be on the town for the pre-engineering study and the $9M-$18M construction of the project?; What are the realistic commercial
property uses for proparlies within the TIF area and how will previding sewer be mare altractiva for their development?; What TIF {ax revenues will thase
new properties generate and will they cover the cost of the consiruclion bond?; How realistic is the 40% contsibution from TIF sewered properties and is
{hare informalion from other TIF districts to justify this contribution?; Is there land available and where is it localed {or the proposed sewer pump station
facilities?; Wil a buildout of the TIF area requira new fire and pelice facllities and whal are their costs?; What are lhe costs of a watermain exlension and
is there sufficient water available from the HYWP?; Meetings should be held with the School Board and Merrimack County to obtain their preliminary
input as a TIF District will impact their revenues.

Recommendation {including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Recommend that the Town Council review the findings and recommendations of the Sewer TIF Commitiee. An
aption to the recommendations presented are to postpone the warrant article for the $845K engineering study and
instead address the questions which were raised at the community info mig and also assess the build-out potential
of the potential TIF area in the form of a planning study and determine the realistic potential sewer needs and
realistic revenues that the TIF area build-out would generate. The cost for this study is estimated at $25-50,000
and this can be presented as a 2017 warrant article.

Fiscal Impact

There is a fiscal tax impact of $16.18 for a $645,000 engineering study 5-year bond for an average
assessed house valued at $231,000 . The fiscal impact of a $25-50,000 planning build-out study warrant
articte is estimated at $0.0167-$0.033/$1000 of valuation.

James J Donison, P.E Asst DPW/Town Eng.
Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




Tax Increment Financing District Public Forum
Meeting Agenda
QOctober 19, 2016
6:00 PM
Hooksett Public Library

Don Winterton, Town Councilor District 5, called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm.

D. Winterton: One of the things in the Master Plan is the creation of sewer on Rt. 3A. There has
been a sub-committee that has been working on this and is now ready to present this to the town.
We are taking this slowly, in steps, and in full transparency. We want to see if we can bring more
commercial development to the town. We are in the best library in the State of NH and we have
the best trash pick-up system. Those services have a cost and we need to concentrate on how to
have good commercial development in order to have these things and other opportunities
continue to be part of our town.

Stu Arnett (Arnett Development Group LLC): This is a great town with great services. Please
feel free to ask as many questions as you would like during or after the presentation. This is a
presentation but T am hoping it will also be a conversation. ADG has been in business for over 9
years. My job is to give you good information so you can make good decisions. We are not

proponents of one service versus another. My job is to help the community so the best decision
possible is made.

Stu Arnett presented the Route 3A Infrastructure Inter-Agency Task Force Report and
Recommendations.

Sid Baines: Will the assessed value of properties automatically increasc?

S. Arnett: If the market value were to go up the assessed value would go up, if it does not it
won’t. It is not automatic that it would go up.

Marc Miville (42 Main Street): Wouldn’t it be general fund totals being deferred? The operating
budget has already been approved by the voters.

S. Arnett: The general fund becomes the operating budget.
Vincent Lembo (56 Main Street): To pay off the $625,000 bond our taxes have to go up?
S. Arnett: They may or may not.

V. Lembo: How will they pay off the $625,000 if there is no tax increase? How can this not
cause a fax increase?

69




S. Arnett: The TIF district does not cause any change in tax rate. The subsequent decision to
warrant or not would cause it. You have had a district in place for 15 years that has not affected
the properties around it because nothing has been spent.

V. Lembo: Nothing has been spent, however, if the $625,000 is spent taxes will go up no matter
how small the amount. If money is spent there would be a tax increase.

S. Arnett: True but the TIF district is not causing it the warrant is.
V. Lembo: That is part of the TIF.

S. Arnett: It does not have to be. It is not in itself an authorization to spend or not spend. That is
a separate vote by the voters.

V. Lembo: It is a watrant article as opposed to the town just raising taxes.

Michael Sorel (54 Cross Road): It is my understanding that all bonds issued by municipalities in
the State of NH by law are general obligation bonds. Is that correct?

S. Arnett: We are suggesting general obligation.

M. Sorel: We were told by a bond attorney when we considered a TIF for Exit 11 that all
municipal bonds issued by any municipality are general obligation bonds, which means that if
there is not enough revenue from taxation, from income, or other sources the short fall will be
picked up by the taxpayers.

S. Arnett: Correct,

M. Sorel: That is what happened with the ballpark in Manchester. The development of
commercial which was going to supplement the taxes and the income coming in to pay the
municipal bond did not happen, so the shortfall has been picked up for the last 15 years by the
taxpayers of the City of Manchester. That has been spread out over 100,000 people. Whatever
bond would be issued by the town whether it be for a TIF or to fund this $625,000 for research
and development will be a general obligation bond and the taxpayers of Hooksett would be
responsible for that whether it be an increase in assessment or other areas.

S. Arnett: It clearly says general obligation. | wanted to use different words so that people would
understand. One of the more successful ones is the one at Exit 10 which more than paid for itself

and has turned substantial tax revenue back to the town.

M. Sorel: The town had a letter of credit so the taxpayers were secured. In that case the
taxpayers of Hooksett were protected.

S. Arnett: That would go back to how the warrant is worded.

70




M. Sorel: [t is my understanding that the TTF statute in the State of NH states that the two other
operating entities, the School Board and the county, has a financial interest in any and all
revenue created in that TIF district.

S. Arnett: The statute says that the requirement before you adopt the TIF is that the two other
operating entities, the School Board and the county, have to give and adequate notice of their
intention and it has to be reviewed at a hearing. They do not have to approve it.

M. Sorel: They do not get any revenue out of it if they so request?

S. Arnett: All three defer their new revenue until the bond is paid off.
M. Sorel: They must, they shall, or the statute provides that?

S. Arnett: They must until that service is paid off.

M. Miville: You said that the TIF is invisible to the taxpayer.

D. Winterton: The TIF is, the bonding isn’t.

M. Miville: Tunderstand that in theory, but as soon as you float that warrant article for $625,000
that is roughly another penny for every $15,000 the taxpayer will have to pay. So it will be
roughly a 5 1/2 cent increase per thousand for the taxpayer. That is not invisible to the taxpayer.

M. Sorel: The TIF is invisible the financing is not.

S. Arnett: Every year you could get money coming in and not have a use for it and that would go
back into the general fund.

Mary Farwell (24 Grant Drive): Could impact fees be used with the new development to provide
a new substation, fire station, etc?

S. Arnett: You have an impact fee legislation and it is in place.

Jim Gordon (150 West River Road): Chapter 13, Future Land Use, of the Master Plan, states: “It
is the Town’s intent to retain intensive land uses on the eastern—Route 3—side of the
community; it is also the Town’s intent to take active steps to insure that lands on Route 3-A (on
the west side) do not become as intensively used as Route 3. It is very likely; however, that over
time non- residential development will migrate to areas along Route 3-A. As this occurs, it is
recommended that the Town make the kind of wise transportation decisions that will allow these
uses to function with much less traffic congestion than has occurred on Route 3. It would be
approptiate to try to determine ahead of time where signal lights may be needed, and therefore
where to implement access management techniques.” Rt. 3A is already heavily congested. The
same is true coming off of Hackett Hill, Exit 11, to Rt. 3A.

71




S. Arnett: T would refer that to the Town Planner and the Chairman of the Planning Board. If the
Town Council is considering the district, I would anticipate they would do some traffic investing
to fix that. Traffic enhancements could be included as part of the cost.

J. Gordon: Has DOT been contacted by you or your company with respect to this and are they
involved? Rt. 3A is a state road.

S. Arnett: [ work for the town. [ am presenting to the town to help the town make a decision. 1
am not a traffic engineer.

J. Gordon: So you have not contacted DOT?

S. Arnett: We have their traffic count. If the town decides that it has a significant traffic issue
that needs investment this could be one way of accelerating that investment.

Dave Hess (68 Pine Street): 1am curious about the target 60% public, 40% private. Also, the
private contribution towards funding would occur only by those property owners who elect to
connect to the sewer line?

S. Arneit: Correct.

D. Hess: If you have a property in the TIF that does not connect to the sewer line they will not
contribute toward that 40%.

S. Arnett; Correct.

D. Hess: What was the rationale and how did you arrive at the 60/40 split? With the 40% private
contribution, how did you arrive at the 50/40/10 percent allocation? What does that mean for an
exemplary piece of property?

S. Arnett: We looked at 67/33/0, 33/33/33, and the Commiitee felt that 50/40/10 worked best
and was the fairest. They knew there were existing units that would benefit greatly by this so
they thought they might be more likely to pay if they want to hook onto the system. We do not
want to discourage people who are starting from scratch. This seemed the most fair. The 60/40
was a judgement that the town had to take a lead or else it would not get going. We did not want
to do 90/10 because this will help the private side substantially. The 60% should be able to be
covered in a reasonable amount of time with the new TIF revenue. It was a judgement as to what
would be a minimal risk to the taxpayer and not be a disincentive to make people turn away.

Brian Tilton (502 West River Road): Should the TIF go forward, has their been any talk about
what happens with the impact on the road? Will there be potential for road improvements,
resurfacing, expansion, etc.?

S. Arnett: It is not part of a discussion about sewer line. When the Planning Board deals with
individual site plans they would deal with those questions. I am sure they will not give a site plan

72




approval unless the town standards are met for proper road conditions. Anyone wanting to come
in and connect to the sewer would have to go through the same planning process.

V. Lembo: The figures you put up tonight are different than what you presented on Monday
night.

S. Arnett: This is if the whole area developed. The other was if half developed. It was half, not
additional. We took the higher numbers and cut them in half. The concern was if you do a phase
and not the whole thing. We are trying to understate things.

V. Lembo: To the Sewer Department, do you have the capacity if all of this development goes
through without having a sewer upgrade?

S. Baines: We are permitted for 2.2 million gallons per day and we are currently using 500,000
to 600,000 gallons per day.

V. Lembo: Have those gallons been committed to someone else?
S. Arnett:  No.

V. Lembo: Ifthe Sewer Department invests in this project, are the people using the sewer going
to pay or will the entire town pay?

S. Baines: The entire town pays.

S. Arnett: This is a general obligation bond not a sewer revenue bond. There should be
assurances in the warrant article when it is written?

V. Lembo: Are you anticipating taking anyone’s land by imminent domain?
S. Arnett: There is nothing that says we have to take anyone’s home,
V. Lembo: This would go actoss the river to the sewer plant. Is that town owned land?

S. Baines: As I understand it this is Rt. 3A down to the ice arena. That is on Phase 3. We worked
out an agreement with the owner of the ice arena to run a pipe down the property line between
his land and his abutter, run it behind his house, put the pump station there, and pump underneath
the river. We need a permit to go underneath the railroad tracks on the other side and connect
there. The only private property is the ice area and we have already talked to them.

S, Arnett: The engineering has to be done to satisfy DES. A good place to go is underneath the
river. | cannot guarantee things will go exactly as planned but that is our plan.

D. Winterton: Currently we are only trying to define what a TIF District should be, and a
warrant article would deal with an initial phase that would lay out a lot of the engineering details
should the town decide to go further? We are not building anything right now?




S. Arnett: Correct.

B. Tilton: So currently this would be basically drawing a line on a map? Would that become part
of the town Master Plan?

S. Arnett: It is not like a zoning district but the Master Plan would recognize it as a district of
collecting and utilizing new incremental funds. It does not affect zoning or planning but it would
be an official Plan.

M. Miville: In November will the Town Council be deliberating on a warrant article with
funding involved in the wording of the warrant article, or are are we theoretically establishing a
TIF for the March election?

S. Arnett: The recommendation is the district and the $625,000. That is to be decided by the
Town Council.

M. Miville: 1many have misspoken earlier. I said the tax impact would be 5 1/2 cents. It would
be roughly 43 cents per thousand.

D. Winterton: That would be $625,000 if we were to pay it all at once. 1f we bond it so the TIF
can reimburse it, $13.55 is what an average homeowner would pay in increased taxes over the
next 5 years.

S. Arnett; We are suggesting it be bonded because it would be reimbursable by the TIF.

M. Miville: The taxpayer should understand, in transparency, what the tax rate impact would be.
M. Sorel: It is our understanding a natural gas line is already installed on the east side of the Rt.
3A right-of-way and on part of the west side. In addition to the natural gas is a municipal water
line. Is there enough right-of-way to accept a new sewer line? Has DOT been asked? In order to
get the sewer line does that bring in eminent domain?

S. Arnett: We would find that out in the discovery phase. Typically these go in a right-of-way
but until you do borings and check the soil you do not know how the pipe will have to go. The
additional information is paid for in order to know exactly where it will go and what it will cost.
S. Baines: We make every recommendation to be on the opposite side of the street from a sewer
line. 1 do not know if the gas line is on one side and the water line is on the other. The engineers
would have to make it work.

Dave Hess: Who were the private owners on the task force and how were they selected?

S. Arnett: Due to the fact this was forming a town policy we did not want to open it to owners
until the town decided what it wanted to do. Private owners came to the meetings but they were

74




not voting members. We did not want to have a policy that was seen as helping some but not
others so we refrained from having private owners as voting members.

J. Gordon: Ifthis system gets installed and is along the existing edge of the highway, if the state
decides to widen the roadway, will those systems have to be moved or does the highway just get
paved over?

S. Arnett: That would be a scenario considered in the pre-phase, including if this is a good time
for road improvements.

D. Hess: Dealing with the 60/40 provision, was it a definite recommendation that it would
proceed only if the 40% private match was committed?

S. Arnett: That goes back to the language of the warrant and will need to be talked through. It
has to be something reasonable.

D. Winterton: This project is designed to be in phases. What we learned today is that we have to
go through the phases to get to the phases. The town, Town Council, and the voters will have to
decide whether to take this to another phase. We are trying to be conservative with estimates
especially in terms of “if we build it they will come.” We learned today that we should do a
$625,000 bond for 5 years. The worst case scenario would that it will cost someone who has an
average home in Hooksett $68 over 5 years to see if we can do commercial development on the
west side.

M. Sorel: Do I understand from the presentation made this evening that the only way that sewer
line will get to the sewer treatment plant is under the river in the vicinity of the ice arena?

S. Arnett: That was the recommendation that was accepted by the task force. There were two
other options considered. It could go south to north or north to south if it is started at Exit 11.
The pump station needs to be in the middle of Rt. 3A.

D. Winterton: Option 2 brought the sewer under the river down at Exit 10. That was the original
recommendation and then Walmart has not done anything, however, they continue to clean out
their septic system frequently. Their site plan for their own wastewater treatment plan has
expired.

S. Arnett: If the goal is to make the whole area accessible it makes sense to put the pump station
in the middle.

M. Miville: 1 want to hear from the citizens. It would be great if they could come to the Town
Council meeting on November 9, 2016 or offer public input.

D. Winterton: The more public input we get their encouragement or discouragement would be
helpful.

S. Arnett: Emails can also be sent to JoAnn Duffy or Jim Donison.

75




The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 pm.

76



1 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17,2016
Unofficial

HOOKSETT PLANNING BOARD MEETING
HOOKSETT TOWN HALL CHAMBERS (Room 105)
35 Main Street
Monday, October 17, 2016

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 P.M.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
INTRODUCE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

PRESENT: D. Marshall (Chairman), Tom Walsh (Vice-Chairman), Muamer Durakovic, T.
Prasol, F. Kotowski, P. Scarpetti, and D. Winterton (Town Council Rep.)

ALTERNATES: Denise Grafton and Christopher Stelmach
EXCUSED: Michael DiBitetto {Aiternate).

STAFF: JoAnn Duffy (Town Planner) and Jim Donison (Town Engineer/Assistant Public Works
Director)

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF 10/03/16

October 3, 2016 Regular Meeting — F. Kotowski motioned to approve the minutes of the October 3,
2016 meeting. Seconded by T. Prasol. M. Durakovic abstained due to not being in attendance at the
October 3, 2016 meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

EXTENSION OF SUBDIVISION APPROVAL

1. PAUL MAURAIS
Maurais Street, Map 45, lot 33
Approval Extension of two-lot Subdivision

J. Duffy: Mr. Maurais is now retired and has more time to work on what he would like to do with this
land.

John Reardon: I would like to know what the overall plan is.

Matt Peterson (Hillside Design/Representing Paul Maurais): During the last year Mr. Maurais had this
under agreement for someone to build on it. They walked away in the last two months. We are here for
the two-lot subdivision. It leaves his existing house and a separate lot. He would like to sell that. He is
not developing it, it just gives him the ability to sell his house and sell this piece separately.

T. Walsh motioned to grant the extension of a two-lot subdivision for Paul Maurais, Maurais Street,
Map 435, Lot 33. Seconded by P. Scarpetti.

77




2 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

D. Grafton: The extension was set to expire on November 5, 2016 yet the date on the cover sheet says
November 11, 2016. Could we clarify that.

M. Peterson: The notice of decision from last year was to extend to November 5, 2016. My cover letter
was incorrect.

Motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATIONAL HEARING

2. NH NATIONAL GUARD
1227 Hooksett Road, Map 34, lot 4
Informational Presentation on update of Field Maintenance Shop

1. Duffy: The National Guard was here in February, 2015 with their conceptual plan. They have firmed
up what they would like to do on the site. They hired an architectural firm and are here to give you an
update. T have had several people who have come forth with concerns with the blasting and their wells.

Marty Sienkiewycz (SAS Architects): The project involves 19.6 acres. The site is roughly divided in
half north to south. Thete is a ravine/drainage that splits that site. The proposed development is to the
north of that drainage swail. This project is zoned Performance District. There are variable setbacks in
that zoning district. We have exceeded the maximum zoning setback requirements for all of the build-
ings and parking areas. We are paying attention to maintaining a buffer and leaving as much of the
wooded area as possible. We are striving to minimize the impacts on wetlands. The proposed develop-
ment does not impact those. We are connecting to existing infrastructure for sewer, water, and electric
and all of those have adequate capacity that has been confirmed and are at appropriate locations for
connections to the site. We want to minimize alteration of terrain. We spent a lot of time setting the
building elevation. The site has a good deal of ledge thus the blasting requirement. We tried to keep the
building as high as we can to minimize blasting but there will be blasting as part of this. There are two
proposed buildings. The primary building is a vehicle maintenance facility. There are two halves to that
building. Roughly 11,000 sq. ft. is the administrative, office, and support area. Approximately 15,000
sq. ft. is the vehicle maintenance area. The administrative portion is facing Rt. 3. The building is ori-
ented east to west so that the visual end is toward Rt. 3 and the view toward the residential neighbor-
hood to the east is minimized. The work bay doors face north and south. In terms of use and {traffic,
there are 10-14 employees that will work M-F. There is parking that supports their vehicles and visi-
tors. The vehicle traffic planned is six road tests per week, three customer appointments with 2-4 vehi-
cles being delivered to the site weekly, and 2-3 visitors weekly. It is a low use facility in terms of traf-
fic. The hours of operation would be 7:30-4:00. The part of the site that is disturbed is approximately
7.5 acres. There will be ledge removal. We have completed construction documents now. There is a
comprehensive plan for ledge/rock removal. The requirements include creating a blast plan, performing
a pre-blast survey of the area within 300° of the blast area, submitting notice to all abutting properties 7
days in advance, submitting notice to Hooksett authoritics 24 hours prior to blasting, posting signs 500
from the work area, providing whistle before blast, pre and post blast 15 days prior to starting work,
and notifying 24 hours prior to blasting.

78




3 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016 7
Jeff Zweber (Engincering Ventures/Civil Engineer for the Project): There will be some blasting on the
site but it will be less than 10,000 cubic yards of blasting which is significantly less than the amount of
blasting that is generated from something like a quarry operation. There is a knoll in the middle of the
site that is around 10 in height. It is difficult to address with absolute certainty any sound or noise. It
does propagate off-site. The State of NH has best management practices for blasting that are recom-
mended to be followed and we included them in the construction documents. Those should mitigate
any off-site impacts. The studies include a seismograph that measure energy due to the density or con-
figuration of the rock and if energy goes off-site more than expected. With the nature of blasting it is
to concentrate the energy between the blast holes. That is done through the progressive sequencing of
charges so that the charges do not go off at the same time. They go off in a quick succession so the en-
ergy is not wasted and the rock between the drill holes is what is pulverized and not off-site.

Nelson Charest (23 Harbors Drive): I am a direct abutter, Are they going to survey the houses when
they do the blasting to make sure there is no structural damage to our property? They were blasting by
the bridge and I could feel it at my house.

J. Zweber: The requirement is for a contractor survey within 300” of the blasting location. Due to the
site being so long, north to south, it may or may not be surveyed. You would be contacted as a direct
abutter. If you had additional concerns I am sure the blasting company’s pre-blast inspector could sur-
vey your house.

N. Charest: Who would be liable if something does happen?
J. Zweber: As an engineer I do not get into the liability of things.

N. Charest: There are three houses that are direct abutters and we are sitting right on the ledge. My
house is a foot off the ledge. I am concerned about my foundation.

M. Sienkiewycz: Understood. Blasting is a requirement for this project. The key to successful blasting
without damaging anyone’s property is to do the pre-blast survey and set up the seismograph. Charges
can be adjusted each time so that every charge gets measured and a blasting plan is developed based on
the magnitude of that charge. If they have to use smaller and more frequent charges that can be done.
The people who will be doing the blasting are experts.

N. Charest: Do we have any recourse if we have damage?

M. Sienkiewycz: It would most likely be through the State of New Hampshire. It is a state project.

D. Marshall: It makes me nervous when specific questions cannot be answered and things are general-
ized. Each of the structures within 300" of this site will have a pre-blast survey. That means on-site they

inspect the buildings inside and out prior to blasting?

). Zweber; That is correct. Inspecting them would be subject to the property owner allowing the in-
spection.

D. Marshall: After the blasting is done, are we to assume the same structures will be examined again?

79




4| Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016
J. Zweber: Yes.

J. Duffy: Previously they said 300” from the blasting site, not the fot-line.

D. Marshall: It is 300° from the extreme of the blasting site, Should something go wrong and there is
damage to one of these houses or other structures, are you saying it becomes a civil matter between
those property owners and the State of NH.

Dave Mikolaities: (Head Engineer/Director of Public Works for the NH Army Nationatl Guard): The
State of NH Department of Admin Services is a contract administrator. It would be brought up through
that homeowner and that contract administrator to determine what transpired. I do not want to mislead
you into thinking the general contractor will pay the individual.

T. Walsh: Is the 300° from the blast area a typical distance? In my own experience I was 1,000” away
and got the pre and post inspection of my home when blasting was done. Where did the 300° come
from?

J. Zweber: That is a minimum that was in the standard specifications. The contractor may choose to
extend the survey in excess of that.

F. Kotowski: Is the contractor to be bonded to cover any damage that might occur to surrounding
properties?

J. Zweber: There are bonding requirements, but I am not sure what those are.

F. Kotowski: Could you check to see if that will be in the contract?

J, Zweber: Yes.

D. Marshall: This is an informational meeting for them to bring us up-to-date on what is happening on
the property. There is no decision to be made by this Board. The State of NH nor the federal govern-
ment are subject to the zoning ordinances or sub-division regulations of this town. They came to us as a
courtesy as they did originally. 1 expect that because it is the State of NH. and we are all residents, they

will be sensitive to what potential dangers there are and take the precautions necessary to ensure there
is no damage.

M. Sienkiewycz: Based on this discussion my recommendation to the owner would be to expand the
300’ to a larger number. I do not know what that will be, but we will have that discussion.

D. Winterton: Do you have an updated timetable on this project?

M. Sienkiewycz: We are hoping to put the project out to bid during December/January. If all goes as
planned we would like to award it in spring to start construction in the April/May time frame.

T. Walsh stepped down.

D. Grafion will be voting.

80




5 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

PUBLIC HEARING

3. HARMONY PLACE (#16-37)
1621 Hooksett Road, Map 14, lot 27
Amended Site Plan for a 63 Unit Multi-Family Development

J. Duffy: At the October 3, 2016 meeting a motion was made to approve, the motion tied, and as a re-
sult failed, but there was no follow up vote. There should have been a motion to defeat. That would
have, mostly likely, ended up as a tie as well. They are here for you to take another vote. If you decide
to make a motion to deny and the vote is carried there needs to be reasons for denial because I have to
issue a Notice of Decision and there have to be reasons for denial in case this goes to superior court.

D. Marshall: Would you like to add anything?

Jennifer McCourt (McCourt Engineering): We got the variance to have the multi-family units and the
special exception to have the water tank on the property. Our on-site drainage mcets the town and state
regulations. The $150,000 is a gift to the town to try to help a situation. Anything derogatory towards
that I take exception to. There are a substantial amount of improvements that need to be made to be
able to construct this project such as the roadway, the access up, and the drainage sewer improvements.
These won’t rent for short money. They are high end two-bedroom apartments. There will be a com-
munity room. If you want to talk about the water tank or road improvements I have more information
from when the variance and special exception were granted.

D. Winterton: JoAnn, can you tell me how the impact fees are calculated for two-bedroom apartments
versus if they were condominiums or single family houses.

J. Duffy: A condominium would just be a different form of ownership. It would not affect the impact
fee. The impact fee is assessed as single family, multi-family, elderly, accessory, etc. The ownership as
far as a condominium or multi-family does not make any difference. The only thing that would make a
difference is if it was a townhouse condominium.

D). Winterton: If they were single family houses there would be more funds from impact fees.

J. Duffy: You would never fit that many single family homes there.

D. Winterton: I understand that. The schoo! impact fees are important to our community and this could
have a much greater impact than the ones they would be paying on our community.

J. McCourt: The impact fees are calculated on the impact that the 2-bedroom apartments would have
and that is what we have to pay.

J. Duffy: The impact fees for multi-family for schools are a lesser amount than for a two-bedroom

home. Studies that were done when the impact fee was formulated showed that apartments create less
school-age children than single family homes do.

Open public hearing,

81




Pete Farwell: (24 Grant Drive): We attended a Town Council meeting on October 12, 2016 in which
the safety council has proposed limiting the access from Rt. 3 onto Main Street. If that gets passed it
will force all of the traffic that used to take a left onto Main Street, up the hill, and to turn left onto
Pleasant View or up College Parkway and down by the library. Those of us on Beauchesne are con-
cerned because of the affects on that short stretch of road. Traffic going up the hill will increase dra-
matically and there are already a lot of accidents there. 1 also have concerns with the drainage and wa-
ter. For years Beauchesne has had severe water problems and some people have gone to great lengths
and expense to get the water out of their basements. I understand there will be some money set aside,
but if it will cost $300,000 to do that. Where is the rest of the money going to come from. We ask that
vou consider that and the traffic.

D. Marshall: Regarding the comment on the traffic, there would be a notth bound deceleration lane
and a south bound isolated left turn lane so the road can handle the traffic coming in and out of the de-
velopment.

P. Farwell; Iam wondering if the moving of this traffic off of Rt. 3 and Main Street changes any study
that has been done.

Vincent Lembo (56 Main Street): My understanding is that the people at Beauchesne Development
have had extreme flooding from the Granite Hill Development. How much is the study on the drainage
upgrade going to cost the town?

J. Duffy: The study was already paid for and completed in 2009.

V. Lembo: At the last meeting the town engineer stated that jt would cost around $300,000 to repair
the drainage on Beauchesne.

J. Donison: The original study done by Stantec a2 number of years ago estimated the cost would be
around $150,000. I just did an update on that and conservatively it would be around $300,000. It may
be less but that is a safe number.

V. Lembo: Has anyone looked into where the rest of the money will come from to do the necessary
upgrades to Beauchesne’s drainage. Do we have that money in the CIP town wide drainage fund?

J. Donison: We have some money in the CIP for drainage, but I do not know the exact amount. I do
not know where the extra funds would come from.

V. Lembo: Would the developer contribute more money for the drainage to alleviate the problem of
the the Beauchesne development drainage? During the Mother’s Day floods the Fire Department was
pumping out everyone’s basements. If the $150,000 was done in 2009 and things have increased over
time I do not know where the town will get the extra funds if it is not in the CIP. 1 think the develop-
ment he is proposing will cause more drainage problems in that area.

J. Donison: The drainage study that was prepared for this development showed that there will not be
an increase in run-off from the development.

82




7 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

D. Marshall: This Board depends on the analysis of the developer’s engineers dealing with drainage
and our review of that to determine what impacts a development would have on any off-site area.
Those studies show there would be no impact. Our review of that indicated the same. The developer
said he will contribute $150,000 but that has nothing to do with his being responsible with what the
problems are in the Beauchesne development. It is a contribution that will go toward helping relieve
those problems, but at some point-in-time the town needs to step in to provide a share to correct those
problems, or those residents need to form some sort of alliance to contribute money to resolve the is-
sues. It is not this developer’s responsibility to do that. They have met all of the requirements and we
were satisfied when we approved them.

J. McCourt: 1 did some of the drainage work in Granite Hill. Having been through the state and town
process since then, the requirements have substantially become stricter. What we were designing for
back then and what we design for now are two completely different things. This has to get an Altera-
tion of Terrain permit, and the state AOT are now requiring us to use extreme rainfall data which is up-
dated to show things such as the Mother's Day flood. We are designing for bigger storms as well as
infiltration, which we never did before, to try and infiltrate back into the ground water so that the water
does not go off-site. The substantial amount of vegetation we are puiting on this site to revegetate areas
also helps in minimizing the drainage off-site. There is a huge difference from the drainage calculations
back in the 1980’s and what we do now by regulation alone.

P. Farwell; Will the drainage water that is collected go back into the ground or into the sewer system?

J. McCourt: Neither. From our site there is a culvert underneath Rt. 3. that discharges across the road
now. By state law we cannot change our watershed area. There are four discharge points from the site
but that is the main one. A culvert that goes across Rt. 3 to Beauchesne, runs down a ditch and is
caught in a culvert that goes through the property, runs down Beauchesne into the town property, and
through two culverts before it discharges into a larger drainage area and then to the river. That is where
it goes today. We have to design for that point because of the wetlands. We cannot decrease the amount
of water that is going there. We have to make surc that we maintain the same water shed going in the
same area. The water has to be treated first before it can be discharged and also recharged backed into
the groundwater and detained so we do not increase the channel flow during the lower flows and do not
erode those channels. It is an whole engineering study that has to be completed.

P. Farwell: It discharges into Beauchesne?
J. McCourt: It has to by state law.

P. Farwell: Their development is putting an awful burden on those people. If they could discharge it
into the sewer it would take the pressure off.

D. Marshall: Are you increasing the flow?
J. McCourt: No.

F. Kotowski: We cannot allow storm water to go into the sewer lines because we end up cleaning
storm water.

83




8 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016
P. Scarpetti: When is the $150,000 to be paid?

Sonny Sell: When we start construction.

P. Scarpetti: Jim, is there any major work that could be done to alleviate some of the problems they
have and do it in phases?

J. Donison: What is being proposed is to increase the size of the drainage pipe on Beauchesene Drive
to a larger diameter. It would all have to be done at the same time.

Chris Lampron (1617 Hooksett Road): I live just south of the proposed Harmony Place development
on the worst part of the turn on Hooksett Road. Since we have moved in it has been a concern. I have
lived there for 14 years and have almost had ten accidents from people coming around the turn because
I have no line of sight in either direction. I have contacted many people in town. DOT came to my
house and agreed there is a heavy volume of traffic around the turn but they said no one coming around
the turn was doing the speed limit. My daughter will be getting her license in a couple of years. I am
not looking forward to having her learn how to pull out onto the street without getting hit. When this
project first came up 1 had been talking to everyone in the town about the traffic issues. DOT said |
could excavate my yard back to increase my line of sight but that would be at the expense of myself
and my neighbors if they chose to do the same. We do not have the money to do that. Jen got flagged
through the emails through JoAnn as far as what 1 was talking to people about. She came up with an
offer to give me casement into their driveway. Instead of having to pull out onto Hooksett Road I could
drive straight forward, pull into their property, and my exit point would be on their turn lane. That alle~
viates the majority of my concerns of navigating in and out of the traffic. I been trying to find a solu-
tion since 2004 and this is the only viable option I have seen. I hope that you take that into considera-
tion and you approve it.

Close public hearing.

T. Prasol motioned to approve the amended site plan for a 63 Unit Multi-Family Development for
Harmony Place (#16-37), 1621 Hooksett Road, Map 14, Lot 27. Seconded by D. Grafton. Opposed by
F. Kotowski. Motion carried.

T. Walsh returned.

4. EVERSOURCE (#16-33)

13 Legends Drive, Map 25, lot 80

Site Plan for Telecommunications Facility to include 120° Tower for Eversource use only
T. Prasol stepped down

D. Grafion will be voting.
J. Duffy: They are back tonight to get your approval. Staff has no objections.
F. Kotowski motioned to approve the site plan for a Telecommunications Facility to include 120’

Tower for Eversource use only for Eversource (#16-33), 13 Legends Drive, Map 25, Lot 80. Second-
ed by D. Grafton. Motion carried unanimously.




9 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

T. Prasol returned.

WAIVER OF SITE PLAN REVIEW

5. GE AVIATION
9 & 13 Industrial Park Drive, Map 18, lots 42 & 43
Waiver of Site Plan for addition of Fitness Path and Pavement

Nick Golon (TF Moran): This would be a 4’ wide, 700° long path. When we look at installing some-
thing of this nature we look at the baseline items such as grading, drainage, and other potential impacts.
With regard to the additional pavement, that would be located behind the wastewater treatment build-
ing. That area was previously impacted by the fill material that came from the GE solar project. The
area being paved will drain to the basin that exists now and there would be no adverse impacts. With
regard to the path, it will follow the existing topography and will have the opportunity to infiltrate. L am
not aware of any drainage problems in that vicinity.

Susan Niquette (GE): The Hooksett GE site won 2nd prize in a GE nationwide fitness program contest
and as a result we have money available to us to do something health related. The walking path seemed
to be the only viable option to fall within that funding program. This will be a great way for the em-
ployees to walk at lunchtime. There is lighting available and there would be a fence around it so only
GE employees could use it. The only key to this is that we have to spend the money by December 12,
2016.

D. Winterton motioned to grant the waiver of site plan for addition of Fitness Path and Pavement for
GE Aviation, 9 & 13 Industrial Park Drive, Map 18, Lots 42 & 43. Seconded by P. Scarpetti. Motion

carried unanimously.

JOINT MEETING: TIF COMMITTEE, SEWER COMMISSION, KCONOMIC DEVELOP-
MENT COMMITTEE AND PLANNING BOARD

0. TIF PRESENTATION

D. Marshall: The TIF Committee consists of members from the Planning Board (Denyse Grafion and
myself), Town Council (Don Winterton), Dave Scarpetti (Economic Development), Sewer Commis-
sion (Frank Kotowski and Sid Baines), and the Village and Central water districts. The purpose of this
was to develop an approach providing infrastructure and improvements along Rt. 3A to be named a TIF
district. We are going to have a presentation by Stu Arnett from Arnett Development Group who has
been responsible for the study and costing out various options for accomplishing these goals. The TIF
Committee would like to have the blessing of the Planning Board to go along with the proposal to work
within the TIF district with an aim to increasing the growth of commercial and industrial development
along that corridor.

Stu Arnette: It has been my pleasure to work with the town since earlier this year on a question they
had which was if infrastructure was to be built along Rt. 3A what would be some possible ways to do

85




10 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

the financing. A TIF is a small part of the question and whether it is a good idea or not. We will walk

everyone through the process of how we got to the point we are at. The town will have the original
PDF’s of all of the worksheets.

S. Arnette discussed the Route 34 Infrastructure Six-Entity Task Force Report and Recommendations
for the Town of Hooksett, NH by ADG-Arnett Development Group LLC, October 2016.

M. Miville: What types of businesses can be using the property now without sewer. Will the business-
es that are currently there going to be required to go on sewer? Are the businesses that are there now
the types that would continue to be there and can there be businesses on Rt. 3A that do not need sewer.

D. Marshall: There are some businesses that can operate on minimal septic systems. A restaurant is
more difficult considering the size of those lots. They would be restricted as to what kind of businesses
can go in there. The potential is that with sewer they could be bigger and produce more revenue.

M. Miville: 1 have a list of businesses that | would like to see in town and would like to recruit. 1
would like to know what can exist there now and is there a minimum limit as to what would require a
sewer?

S. Arnette: Everyone along there currently is without sewer so what you see is what you will see more
of. You have a Walmart and a Bass Pro but neither can expand. The area would be more vibrant with
Sewer.

M. Miville: Option 3 might be bigger restaurants, whereas option 4 might be smaller flower shops and
that type of business.

J. Duffy: It would not necessarily be bigger restaurants. It would be ones that can wash dishes.
D. Marshall: Bass Pro would Jike to put in their restaurant and they cannot currently do that.

M. Miville: The TIF land is hilly. Does that mean if businesses want to go in this TIF district will they
have to tear into that and put in retaining walls?

J. Duffy: The engineering study took the steep slopes into account. That area is by the movie theater.
Ledge cannot be developed with septic but you can have sewer on ledge.

S. Arnette: There will not be much change in the middle section.

M. Miville: Someone has told me that the Master Plan had it where part of the west side of Rt. 3A was
not supposed to be developed.

J. Duffy: One of the recommendations of the Master Plan is to provide sewer on Rt. 3 to Exits 10 and
11.

M. Miville: Are there any businesses there now that are seeking sewer?

86




11 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016 _ )
J. Duffy: Bass Pro has expressed an interest in a restaurant and Arlie Green has expressed an interest.
Hooksett lost out on FW Webb that just brought 1,000 jobs to Londonderry.

M. Miville: A lot of people are concerned that this won’t be successful.

Vincent Lembo (56 Main Street): If a business goes in right now on Rt. 3A, for example a one hundred
seat restaurant, they get approval, and they get a septic designed that would be able to accommodate
that, they be able to do that, correct?

D. Marshall: Yes.
T. Walsh: A lot of the lots may not be big enough for that.

V. Lembo: Depending on how many lots are buildable they could get the septic system approval if
they have the room to do it. Just because it does not have sewer does not mean there is a restriction that
type of business could not go in there.

J. Duffy: 1 think the cost would be prohibitive depending on the size of the restaurant. There is a hotel
that was just approved on Hackett Hill Road and that is proposed to go on septic.

V. Lembo: It is not prohibited if they want to spend enough to go on septic?

Sid Baines: The Sewer Commission is here to run a sewer line and to ensure the waste water is proper-
Iy taken care of. I am looking into the idea of option 3 where the sewer line would be run from Exit 10,
around the ice arena where it crosses the river and hooks onto the wastewater treatment facility. Our
estimate is that it would cost between $7 and $9 million to do that. That would be the primary start to
get this TIF off the ground and allow Exit 10 to develop. Exit 10 has Arlie Green’s property which is
65 acres and is all ledge such as Granite Hill was. There is so much potential for Arlie Green’s proper-
ty. Bass Pro wants to put in a bowling alley and a restaurant, and Demoulas wants a hotel behind their
property. Arlic was talking about a hotel on his. If you take all of these hopes the potential is endless at
Exit 10 alone. If we can get the crossing around the ice house and that is all we do for now, when Exit
10 is ready to develop it would be a lot casier to make that connection from Exit 11 to the pump station.
When someone speaks about putting in a one hundred seat restaurant with a septic system, it is im-
portant to remember that as soon as a septic system is it put in from the first day it starts to fail and it
will eventually fail. With sewer that is eliminated. It is a great idea to put sewer over there. It is time. It
needs to go in, it should go in, and it needs to impress the people that will pass it.

D. Marshall: In serving on this Committee, I do not think there would be many members of that Com-
mittee that would disagree with what Mr. Baines said. The Committee wants option 5, but the priority
is Phase I, Exit 10 to the pump station, Phase I, Exit I1 to the pump station. We recognize that Exit 10
has better shovel ready prospects compared to Exit 11. It would behove us to let the public know what
the potential is and the phasing that we would be approaching once the studies show that it is viable
and feasible to do. We are looking at Phase | South and Phase 2 North.

D. Winterton: 1 have served as Chairman of this sub-commiittee and it has been a pleasure to bring all
of the people and departments that have a hand in this together. Tt is unique in the history of Hooksett
to get Planning, Sewer, and Water having the same weight on the same project. I agree with Chairman

87




12 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

Marshall that the Committee is unanimous that this is a proper way to go. [ like the way it is phased
with safety nets. There is an “If” in “TIF” but there are stop gaps. Without a risk there is no reward.
The town has taken a small risk by funding the Arnett project, by bringing engineers in, and the next
step would be to find out the engineering and making sure the citizens and voters know that we still
have a safety net and the ability to stop it. Each time a step is taken the risk is greater because invest-
ments will be made. Knowing we have a stop gap and what our total risk is to get the rewards I think
we need to do that. I want to thank all of the members of the Committee for their attendance, input, and
cooperation.

F. Kotowski: I think everyone in town ought to reflect on what a marvelous result came from the orig-
inal TIF. When Arlie Green came into the area off of the other side of Exit 10 there were a lot of skep-
tics. T would like someone to look at our tax base and look at the big boxes that are there. They are
there, out of the way, and make it convenient for us to shop. I would like someone to pull off the
amount of taxes those big boxes give to our tax base. If we build it they will come. I believe that be-
cause we have not built it they have not come. I think it is time, and I think it is time we sell this to the
general public so they can vote intelligently knowing what it will do down the road. When these places
are built the debt will be paid quickly and this will help to keep our property taxes down and get other
things in town done that we need to do.

P. Scarpetti: Pizza Man is a perfect example of septic. They are very successful and have already re-
placed their septic system. It has only been 4 or 5 years. It failed because they arc successful. It would
be great if they could be on sewer.

Mike Heidorn (Village Water): We have water main service in parts of the area in question. There are
improvements that would make the district better in terms of water service. Our department is support-
ive of this. As a small department we struggle with revenue sources. Any incremental development in
this area, if they chose to hook up to this, would be beneficial to us and keep rates down for our village
water customers. I appreciate the opportunity to be able to be a part of this.

T. Prasol motioned for the Planning Board to be supportive of the development of the engineering,
cost estimates, and bonds of the TIF that was discussed. Seconded by M. Durakovic.

D. Winterton: I appreciate the support of the Board and the opportunity to take this potential recom-
mendation to the Town Council to craft a warrant.

T, Prasol: 1think this makes sense and like the fact that there are stop gaps in place. It is about time.

F. Kofowski abstained due to the fact he is a member of the Sewer Commission and I would rather
one of the alternates vote in my place. D. Grafton will be voting in his place.

T. Walsh: I look at the negative and the possible results. It would be short sighted to not look as this in
the long term. I was sold when it was mentioned that the Pizza Man’s septic had failed in such a shott
period of time.

Motion carried unanimously.

CHANGE OF USE

88




13 | Planning Board Meeting Minutes, October 17, 2016

None.

BOARD DISCUSSION

None.

OTHER BUSINESS

None.

ADJOURNMENT

T. Prasol motioned to adjourn., Seconded by M. Durakovic. Mation carried unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:07 pm.

Respectfully submitted by,

AnnMarie White
Recording Clerk

89




Aa3SIAIY 9T0T ‘8T 4870120
5711 dnouo yjuswdoasg BNauly -navy
Ag

24lysdweH maN ‘[IoUN0D) UMOL 1195 00H JO UMOL

3y} Jo4

SUOI1EPUSWWO0D3Y pue 1i0day
92404 ¥ se] Aouagdy-Ja1u]
2JN1oNJiseliu] Y€ 91n0Y



UOIRISPISUOD
pappe ue ale y¢ 3uoje syuswanosdull 191ep

pauldap pue palapisuod samljigissod
19Y10 pue ¢ 21n0Y SUO[E SIUBWIIURYUS JIMIS

(0052TS) Jdom suopdo
-8uiuue|d punyj 03 $92438 UOISSIWILLIOD) JIMBS

sSNsuasu0d ‘sapljod ‘UoijRUIIOU
181194 198 01 /10T 10} pa|npaydsaJ uejd
"uo11eW.IojuUl 2a0adw

0] 12BJ1U02 3sn 01 2348e UMOL-D(QY ‘suolido pue
S91BWI1S2 1502 Bunaaui8ua 191194 JO Ik} 01 8nQ

(00£‘TTS) 910 Sunasw
umo] Joj uejd pue suofldo sanpoud 01 p21d3[8s D71 HAY

* guipuny uejd Jaiseln Yyim §T0T 294 ueld {411) 8unueuly
1USWBIIUY XB[ 40} Sd4Y $anss! JuswdopAag Ajlunwiwo)
SIUSWIBDOUBYUD JUSWIUOIIAUT
UOI103[]0 JOMIS JOJ DUNIONIAISEIU[

JUSWdO[2A3P [RIDIDWWOI YE

:S98eun0dUs ue|d 191SBN

AYM pue 1eyA\ :sSuluuissg ay |



UOISSILLLIOY) J9M3S
Spunyj 31eALld
SjuelD) .
3ulpuog 4|L .
:8uipn|oul sai8a1elis Sulpuny Ssassy

cuE

Hanches'lor_

papn|axa saljadoid [enuapisay

|enualod
1uswdo|aAap pue salls ‘s3ulp|ing jo AioluaAaul og

152.19]UI UOISSIWIWIOD
lamas pue Ajpeded Juswieal) JOMas aulwIR13d(

anssi Alewllld Jamag

u_n.uw.,.:..m papniaul . i

ot poag unaL g poJe TT 1xo 01 {BaJe QT 1IX3) aul| UMO] “YE U0 SNJ04

]

aiosiaind padoserpepEn 7]

S3ulpul4 ‘SYR0 |elU]




mg weadnofiuaido[eAIRHIL IR MMM
auysdweH mapN 'pJoauc)
o771 dnoug wswdopasq NBLY - DaY
Ag pesedang
aausdiuen man

HISHOOH IO uMRL
2104 posedaid

AINIDNIISEIU] JOMSS [BLISNPU| pUe [B10iatiwon Buioueing

-l.lll»\\nl\u -‘
o et
A e oo
n\\l“ W‘o‘ﬂfn—
Sy
ST oA
N apt!
=
NHA T

&
..,\A.may/
A

A
/]

o

eapl peq e 1oy XI4
uolien|eAazy
95E3J08P XB|
gSealou] Xe|
Jueln

‘B 10N
152423U1 {B10] SSB| sueaud 1qap Aue Jo jo-Aed Ja1seq .

19158}
ainyanisenpur o1|gnd 404 Aed djay 01 |00} jBIDUBUL Y

411 B STIBYMN

¢101J1S1g 8ulduRUI4 |[PIUDWIBIDU| XE]



Teves

- uevs0iases o uws
B LGy 1R XBY STOT 3V

e st

1
!

Pt U e TR

LTS

ZARALARARZEELLLLLRACAALZAR

SREARISToaerfEETTYRARAFILEARICLLLTIITEIN

e FEFEEEL

UMO] UM 3|I}-3 [|N4 — SP4028Y J0SSasSy UMo] uodn paseg

TVILN3LOd INFINAOT1IATA HLIM S3ilddd

Odd dIL



S6
5 uondo

pa3dadde pue pajuwigns 1Joday .

sSuipuid jo suoljejuasald [eidAaS .

(g uoindQ) a8uel INRTS 01 INGS -

saseyd omy ul TT pue QT siix@ yiog
10 ‘(IN6) TT ¥x2 Joj 81noi-piw dwnd -
140 (JNI6S) OT 1xe Joy @nod-piw dwng -

Agdeau
JALI Japun dwind pue QT X2 1B JBMas -

m <

Manchaester

o~

dalsaloue|p of T

:suonndo ()
anl4 - AJljoe4 JUSWIE3U] 0] UOIIDBUUO0D JIMIS

suodo Joy
SJ92UIBUD $108JIL0I-gNS UOISSILILUOD JI9MIS .

s)103lodd |eliua1od




g6

¢ uondo

e
o

Manchester

T uondo

Manchesur.

suondQ



Manchester
Manchester

suondp



[12UNO) UMoj
dunesw 21jand
J9QWBAON

3unnedN 211qnd
aaniwwo) Juswdolanaq
J1L0U0D] puk pieog 3uluue|d Julor

12qo100

Jaauldul Jo/pue nay m 32404 Msej
120 pue 1dsas ‘Sny

:9|npayds SunaaA yoedi-1sed .

L ]

S0} || 01
a|qeidadde epnwioy Sulieys-31s0d puly 01 {(000°LS
@) s19auidua pue (000°LS) DAY 01 10B41U0I MBN

pajedidiped
sey pue Aem-pitu paLiAU| 121ISI(T 191N D8.[JIA

SIDUMO D1BAlId
[I2UNOD UMO]

UOISSIWIWOY) JBMIS

ganwwo) uawdolpas JtWou0dl .
pieog Suiuue|d .

:U011ePU W WO
pue M3IABJ 10} POYSI|QeISD 92404 MSeL

uoleiuswa|dw| pJemol SUINOIN



M e 0 e, sy 9

TTA W oyama s s s 3 oo SRR
L o et L]

Bt o) o 0 9 41T T L e ks
[t e 00 31 2 AL TIRE MS 2 o
M v =
. g bt =
. T TSI - I
N 15y TrS] IR T YOS 1RO o it
N {psrvertess] 70 4 I YO ST W o o
. M TOTVAN 1L00H i 3
oA AT o 3
il T Wi SNV n )
. AV 1812k WOT SEADL ot &
" N € &
N 24 AL e oML 3 =
. A 11030 LU HAT L . a
" e IONNI T € £ u
] o ¢ t r
4 T DN ALID L € &
. AMDGR AT TR AT " o
4 L R a
" Das ¢ » a
. e m ot
- e 1 1 &
N R SR e0] 28 5w “
+ [ o
2 [T o
2 o L L n =
N 07 HH DU e LTV " s
i Iuwngan o u
11 Beccibussin TN LCHN LD I YRR 1 o
“ a o
a I @
ubban ot Mool e B a
e peeas Meghiesa en v Py
[ ssm vl 1 ol "
. stoanomzes 1w o
. rmgumay 00 1 ma) P "
. T i "
1 [ u "
§ s ] u .
4 TEOM KL LTV n "
N mtansiman auye TrHN o "
4 AT ¢ br ¥
3 3 o w
. TONVITICLIWL AL e T T o
M TR OO Al 1 T o
u TOIUNRSINME BT vt O i "
4 rch 1 "
i Ovod TG T SMdew e w 1)
X e INE L T ol u o
I : u a
. « a
4 " i
n a a
4 n I
. n 2
M 2t o
“ n u
. @ t
. i o
h i &
. % a
. ? a
i W st
“ w e
. - i
. & @
N = o
. & <t
. i 1t
u = e
Il " =
" ¢ w
. t @
. W o
"

WOIGATY 401 162 A3-E41
“TXA0VE 14233 WIHIKKDINL Y 40 WOCLaCRdY kLLrw D3N LLIE) 14 05 STH Vel TrnAuas Tt ea IO i) Wrrelifd
{wiinan e

BN LLIFIOOH
YNNI 00 420

papirold Se|NULIOY |BISASS
UMO] UM UOISISA-3 [|N4

199yspealds suleys 1s0)



(uswelels

93S) 9seaJdu| sanjeA 1xJew Ji Aew ing
‘Son|eA passasse aseasdu] Ajqualdayul 30U |Im
SS920B J9MBS M3U JeY] $91B1S JOSSISSY UMO]L

000'8Z€S S'97S %0T +
000'v9TS WE'ETS %0T +
00078 § JO0ASY = W99 $X %S +

19Q P|NOM SSNUBASJ PaujquI0d ‘pazijesd |eijualod
40 %09 1e pue ‘Slel-Xe} pauIquiod 7/ yzs W

w9TS 01 dn 01 0OO‘QTS Jepun wou) a3uel
siuawIssasse santadoud |eaawwod 3u1isixy

s102ffa ajqissod fo abun.
D moys 01 Ajuo 1ng ‘uojraafoid jou sy siyt

§50999S = WG9S %0T +

£T0°3TES = WEETS %OT +

PIOVITS =W9'9S %S +

SOLIBUDIS € @ ‘Son|eA passasse Jo aduey
UOI1BN|BA {BIJUDPISDI-UOU PISSISSe WZET §
1 bs 3unsixs wg't

sa1oe a|qedoanra 059

eaje
G uondQ ||n} 40} ss1uadoud |[e[dawwod ¢/

AjUQ [BlIUDPISOY-UON

s8UIpUI4 1 Y2JB3SaY SISO PUB SNUBAY



. 000798$ 0z wewdoranap %0v.

000°0PY'T $ 0¢ (anopjing |ind) INSTS

{(1sU0D T aseyd} INY"GS = @84
000°ZEYS JUBWAOBAIP %0Y SS9 INGS

AJUQ [EI1UBPISSY-UON :SU0123[04d -SSulpuld - Yoieasay



$93) lamas |ensn sAed osje Jasn
9peW UO0I133UU03 J AINO Pied
{(260T) suojed-asn j08(0id
(%01) soJoe s|gedojprag .
(%05) 28e100) bs 8unsixy .

:3uipuny ajeald Joj pasodoud
B|NWIOJ SUIBYS-1S0D UODIIINIISUOD DUl JOMIS

[N§SSB2INS S| 1914151Q dY3 41 %09 243
yoeg-Aed 0] swy 19A0 BNUBABI {[] U] YIMOID

a1eAlld %01 /211gnd 909 198ieL
2oueul} d|ay p|noys 103333 91BAld
SHx® Yo 1e jeiualod Juawdosasp poon

Juswdojanap [elluapIsal-uou quedyudis
MU Inoym 19afoad |y Jo 321A43S 1P
10 %00T J12A02 01 Y3NOU3 JOU SNUDAI 4|1 MIN

SanuaAay

0005795
Juswadeuew 133foid ‘Buluue|d udisap-aid
(g uondo) -/+ INBS 01 IN9S aseyd puodds «

(7 10 € suondQ) uoness
dwind a1noJ-piw 3uipnpul -/+ INES 3seyd 1414 .

119S300H
0] 03 J0U Op S3aNU3A3J gunjesadp .

99 UOI122UUO0D NES

1IN0 BB TT 1XD SIAEDT
:Ing uoidQ aAIsSURdXa 15E3| 131SAYJURIA]
paJinbaJ puog uollesd||qQ |edauan .

Juswidojanap mau
31eniul 01 paJinbal uopoe pue SulpUOQ UMOL

'S1S0D) .

SoNUDALY pue S1500)



109UU02
0S[e 0] 1098 Aew spooy oqudiau |eIIuSpPISaY
|EIDJSWIWIOD

01 |BIIU3PISaY WOl usping-xel Jo BIYs

a11dss 1noyym

$31IS JO UOI]EZI[13N 18118Q 0} dNP Asn-pue| J1o1ag
sqof mapN

puedxa-Ae)s sassauisng SulisIxa ‘Sa1UNLIUIOD
J210 0} 150] J0u awdo|arap maN

3NU3A3J XBl M3U JO %00T 921|ea4 usyl
Alunoo—sjooyas-umos ‘|o pied s| puoq 411 USYM

:OAINSOd

U91em JO s19sn Ag pled aq

O] Uigll Ialem puoixs O] posu Aeui JOLIISIC A121BAA

SaLH[Ioe a4l
PUE 321|0d SE YaNns Sal1ljIoe} UMO] mau alinbaa
Aew eaJe TT/QTSISIXS Ul JUBWAO|SASP 9SBaIOU]

passasse

J9ysiy so1dadoud sayjewt JUBWAO[PARD YE MBN .
$3558UISN( 195 00H

4310 404 uo1312d w0 S JUDWAO[DAIP YYE MON
S9NSS| paje|as-ymods Jaylo

40 swiajqo.d 21jeil SOSNED DINIONJISEIJUI MBN »
to.%_ma Spuo( j13un suies snuaAdl

1949p s188png Suliesadp AJUNO)-|OOYIS-UMO]
S9XE1 U] 95ealou|
ue aq |{Im aJay] ‘@1enbape aq 10U [[1M SSNUDARJ

411 9yl Juswdo|ansp juediiudis INOYUAA

SaXe) $9SBaIIUl ‘Spun} mau Y3nous S1elauss
10U S0P 4|1 pue 123png Uo{IdNIISUOD ISYUD
1o 193pnq 3uluugid ayj Jaylls anosdde SIS10A .

SAIIE3DN .

$1|NSaY 3|qISSOd



PORIWIWOD Yd1ew %01 ‘Apeal

1SOW S| 18Y1 11X3 ay1 yum pasdoud /08, Jj
8TOZ SUl123|A UMOJ 10} UOISIDap

08 ou, Jo 08, e dew o1 Apeal ag
sedpajd

10} /10T U] SI2UMO a1eAlid yim 340Mn
3]qI31|2 WawWasInquiial

411 s 1 18Y1 0s 000 S¥9S Y3 pun4
LT0Z SundaN

UMO] 000'SH9S 1€ om SuluasuiBua
-duiuueld u013ONIISUODI-21d JUBIIBAA

IPUIWILIOIDY
uodn pasaJde e|nwios Suleys-1s0) .
1934e) SI 91RALId /21IGNRd O1/09

saseyd om1 uf 3oueUl} pUue pING
SIUBLIBAA JUBNbasOns Ul S1910A
AQ ponosdde JI (WgTS :xa) ded § HIIM
INg siuswiwwos suipuny Aue JNOHLIM »
(£T0Z ‘T |Mdy) 21kp JUdWISSasse
1X3U 84034 |12uno) umo). Ag pardope
pue PS1jeIp 3q PINOYS UB|d 1O1ISIA 4L «
[eljuSpISay
ou ‘eale TT UX3 pue QT 1xa 3uipnjoul
4[1 JO} pausisap se aq p|noys eaJte pa1adie] .

9INJINJISRIJU] JIOMDS SPIBU YE
:sSulputd .

SUollepusWWOdsy mmczoc_n_ 30404 JSke] V¢



¢ STUaWWOD) pue suolisanD



